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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders

The Board of Directors of Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company” or "PQFTL") is pleased to present Annual Report & Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended 3[* December, 2024.

. Economic Overview & outlook

The country's economic pulse, once faltering, now beats with renewed hope, fueled by
strategic fiscal‘reforms, stronger international alliances, and a revitalized financial market.
Pakistani authorities in September managed to clinch a crucial $7 billion bailout paclage from
the International Monetary Fund (IMF), which stood as a lifeline as it stabilized the country
after a tumultuous period of financial instability.

For the fiscal year 2025, the IMF projects that Pakistan's GDP growth would be at 3.2%, a
modest but encouraging sign of recovery given the challenges. Though, this is less than the
target set by the government, it is still better than the projections coming from other
international institutions. These positive forecasts reflect the resilience of Pakistan's economy
despite challenges that are still ongoing, The challenges include political instability and security
concerns. Analysts say that as political stability improves, the economy will likely experience
accelerated growth.

One of the most striking developments of 2024 has been seen in the performance of Pakistan
Stock Exchange (PSX). The PSX saw its first ever builish trend, with the benchmark KSE-100
index reaching from 58,000 points to over 109,000 points by the end of December 2024. Such

sudden spikes in stock market action clearly point towards a further improvement in investor

sentiment on the stability of economic conditions. With an increase in foreign exchange
reserves to $12 billion from $7 billion, this certainly would raise confidence levels. Moreover,
as of today, the reserves now are good for 2.5 months of imports; thus, in all probabilities,
PSX's rise would be smooth for the coming years into 2025 with no surprises politically or
economically,

By the end of 2024, it was evident that inflation had eased significantly from what it was
plaguing Pakistan's economy in 2023. The national inflation rate was cut from a high of 29.2%
in 2023 to 4.9% in 2024. Inflation in urban areas dropped sharply from 30.4% to 5.2%, while
that in rural areas fell from 27.5% to 4.3%. Similarly, the interest rate, which was at 22% in
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2023, had been cut by 900 basis points to 13% by December 2024. This cutis likely to continue
in 2025 and thus will bring some respite to consumers and businesses. Throughout 2024, the
fiscal situation of Pakistan continued to be precarious, with increasing government debt

obligations. During the year, the federal government debt increased by Rs. 6,631 billion,

reaching Rs. 69,114 billion by October 2024, up from Rs. 62,483 billion in the previous year.
On the other hand, the tough decision-making on the part of the government, especially by
the government through tax reforms is the backbone that has seen stability of the economy.
All those important sectors of retail, wholesale, and agriculture have had their respective tax
nets imposed. Economists may raise objections that this indeed increases the revenue, while
the enforcement capacity of Federal Board of Revenue is far from effective.

Remittances also witnessed a tremendous growth of 34.7% year-over-year. During July 2024
to October 2024, remittances surged from $8.79 billion to $11.84 billion, which would go a
long way in me:eting the foreign exchange needs of the country. Exports also surged by 12.57%
during July 2024 to November 2024, reaching $(3.7 billion, another encouraging development
for Pakistan's external sector. While there were many encouraging signs, some industries
struggled. Large-scale manufacturing declined, with production decreasing by 1.92% from July
to October 2024 compared to a growth of 2.16% in the same period last year. This reflects
the challenges in reviving industrial production in an environment of high inflation and interest
rates. The prices of gold also jumped during the year, increasing to Rs. 281,400 per tola in
December 2024 from Rs. 219,200 in the year 2023. This has reflected inflationary pressures
along with the quest for safe haven amid economic uncertainty.

A glimmer of hope as the economy slowly recovers, with expectations of greater political
stability in the new government. The country faces the dual challenge of political and economic
stability into 2025. While the IMF's fiscal discipline has brought some level of stabilization, the
growth pace remains slower than expected. The government remains optimistic that the
tough reforms of 2024 will bear fruit in 2025, with projections for GDP growth to recover
to around 3.2% despite the political and social instability that continues to affect the country.

. Business Performance

Rooted in a culture of innovaticn and high service standards, the Company has consistently

elevated its business position. Throughout this journey of growth, we remained firmly
committed to fundamental Shari'ah-compliant values and the core principle of integrity.

In the financial year 2024, the Company achieved a remarkable milestone, recording gross
contribution income of Rs. 28.81 billion, compared to Rs. [6.29 billion in 2023, an impressive
76.85% increase from the previous year. This substantial growth highlights the Company's
relentless dedication to excellence and its high-quality service. The performance also reaffirms
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the relevance and reliability of the Company’s products, which continue to meet the diverse
and evolving needs of its valued customers,

Business positioning reflects the deep trust placed in the brand and the strength of the long-
term relationships built with policyholders. Looking ahead, the Company is fully committed
to maintaining these high standards, fostering meaningful customer connections, and
preserving its strong reputation as a dedicated takaful leader in the industry.

Participant Talcaful Fund

The Company has a robust claim management system in place, critical to success of any
Takaful/insurance provider. Qur team consisting of doctors and other skilled professionals
serve round the clock, ensuring peace of mind to our policyliolders of a helping hand with a
wide range of hospitals at your Company's panel, The servicing of our policyholders has been
our utmost priority, and it is their time of distress when they look towards the promises
they've bought and those sold to them by us. We've been with them & their successors at
every step of their journey with us, reflected in benefits/claims paid worth Rs. 17.7 billion
(2023: 10.9 billion) inclusive of the policyholder's request for withdrawals, surrender and
maturities that were due during the year. This underscores our unwavering commitment to
meet obligations to policyholders, which strengthens our standing as a trusted takaful
provider.

This year, management adopted a strategy to re-price and offload high-loss-ratio clients in the
group segment, which ultimately resulted in posting an overall surplus in the Participant
Takaful Fund (PTF). The PTF recorded a Surplus of Rs. 8.4 million in 2024, compared to
deficit of Rs. 62 million in 2023.

Furthermore, the investment returns on funds are aligned with the benchmark index
performance. Unit-linked funds also performed in line with their peers. This underscores the
effectiveness of our investment strategies, operational excellence, and robust risk
management protocels. Furthermore, management maintains a vigilant approach to align with
the changing compliance landscape and evolving takaful benefit patterns, especially in the face
of decreasing policy rates, The company remains committed to ensuring compliance with
fiquidity and solvency requirements.

Profitability
The company prioritizes adaptability and growth by anticipating the diverse and evolving needs

of its valued customers, while continuously enhancing its product offerings under the expert
oversight of the Actuary and Shari'ah Advisor. This proactive approach not only drives
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ongoing business expansion but also strengthens Shareholders' funds, via increase in Wakala
and operator fees, supported by investment income.

Respected Shareholders, your Company concluded the year 2024 with Profit before tax of
Rs. 366.4 million against Rs. 192.]1 million in 2023, settling at Rs. 269.7 million after tax
effects (2023: Rs. 156.20 million).

Extracts of Profit & Loss Account

4 ---- Rupees ----
Total Investment Income of Shareholders’ Fund 290,946,849 275,180,815
Other Revenues 16,062,810 32,465,318
Total Investment Income & Other Ravenues 307,005,659 307,646,134
Other expenses (14,019,220} {17,230,880)
Surplus / {Deficit) in shareholders' sub fund 73,465,909 (98,202,603)
59,446,689 (115,533,483)
Profit before Taxation 366,456,348 192,112,651
Taxation (96,735,200) {35,814,547)
Profit for the \}ear after Tax 269,721,148 156,298,104

The statutory auditors of the company have issued a clean opinion in their audit report.
However, without modifying their opinion, they have included an emphasis of matter
paragraph regarding the scope and applicability of Punjab Sales Tax (PST) and Sindh Sales Tax
(SST) on Life Takaful/insurance services, as the matter is being challenged by the Company,
along with other insurance/takaful companies, in the Honourable Lahore High Court and
Sindh High Court. Further details are provided in Note 28.1 to the financial statements.

. Earnings per Share & Break-up Value per Share

The earnings per share of Rs. 2.06 for the year, reflecting a significant improvement compared
to Rs. 1.20 in 2023.

Net Equity of Shareholders’ Funds (SHF) during the year increased by Rs. 196 million to settie
at Rs. 1.84 billion, resulting in a break-up value per share of Rs. 14.15 (2023: 12.86).

Additionally, Pérticipant Talaful Fund (PTF) Equity rose to Rs. 706.5 million, compared to Rs,
698 million in 2023.
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. Dividends to .Shareholders

We are pleased to inform that the Board of Directors has recommended a cash dividend of
10% per share for the year ended 3| December 2024, The approval of the members of the
Company for the dividend will be obtained at the Annual General Meeting. The financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 do not include the effect of proposed
dividend, which will be accounted for in the year ending 3| December 2025,

Post Balance Sheet Event
There are no material adjusting event and changes affecting the financial position of the

Company have occurred between the end of the financial year to which this balance sheet
refates and the date of the Directors' Report.

. Credit Rating

A credit rating is a comprehensive tool for assessing an obligor’s creditworthiness and
reliability of its debt obligations. It allows the rating bearer to show potential investors and
partners its creditworthiness, without divuiging any confidential information, and to make
relations between obligor-and investors highly transparent and efficient.

Your Company stands with a strong credit rating of A++ (Single A++) by the local credit
rating agencies, the VIS Credit Rating Company Limited and The Pakistan Credit Rating
Agency (PACRA). The Insurer Financial Strength (IFS) rating ‘A++' indicates strong capacity
to meet policy Strong capacity to meet policy holders and contract obligations.

Related Party Transactions

At board meeting, the Board of Directors approves Company's transactions with Associated
Companies/Related parties. All transactions executed with related parties are on arm’s length
basis in nermal course of business, and no Director or Chief Executive has personal interest
in the transactions with associated companies.

Related party transactions are disclosed at note 44 to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

.Prospects for 2025

Amid the current political and economic environment, the prospects for the upcoming year
2025 are presenting both opportunities and challenges. Initiation of the IMF program,
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reduction in interest rates are positive signs for the economy while internal, regional, and
global geopolitical landscape can present severe challenges. Insurance Industry in Pakistan
observed several peaks and dips in recent years. However, it successfully managed to keep
pace with the ,development_ of the economy and other sectors. Amid the current macro-
economic andfpoliticﬁ environment, we foresee moderate growth trajectory in Insurance
Sector during the year 2025.

Our strategic focus will remain consistent, sustainable and profitable growth within a
challenging business landscape while upholding Shari'zh standards. The established key
performance indicators for realizing our management objectives remain unchanged,
prioritizing the optimization of customer satisfaction, enhancement of operational
underwriting results, cost management, and increasing overall value for stakeholders. Further,
aggregate results of dedicated takaful companies and window takaful also indicates growing
demand for Takaful products.

.IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The new financial reporting standard IFRS |7 undoubtedly brings about significant changes to
insurance accounting requirements wherein the insurers globally with their apex regulators
are working in partnership to ensure smooth transition towards the new accounting standard.
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has issued instructions of four phase
approach for implementation of IFRS 17.

[. Phase | : Gap Analysis : submitted on 30th Sept 2021

2. Phase 2 : Financial Impact Analysis (FIA) was submitted in three layers on 30th
June, 30th Sept and 31st Dec in the year 2022.

3. Phase 3 : System Design and Methodology deadline is 30th Sep 2024.

4. Phase 4 ; Paraliel Run & Implementation date Ist Jan 2026

The three phases now stand completed and in pursuit of successful implementation of IFRS
Phase 4 ‘Parallel Runs & Implementation’, the SECP has issued directives and requirements
relating to the scope of work, roles & responsibilities, and report format & timefines vide
letter ID/MDPRD/IFRS-17/2024/3783, dated December 23, 2024, The Company has
onboarded an‘actuarial consulting firm and aligned internal resources to ensure effective
execution of the directives. A structured implementation plan has been developed aimed at
ensuring timely execution of first Dry Run exercise by June 2025, which will lay a solid
foundation for the smooth execution of subsequent steps for successful implementation of
IFRS 17.
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Capital Management and Liquidity

The Company maintains good financial base. Your company carefully administers its liquidity
to ensure its ability to meet its obligations efficiently. The Company operates and honours its
obligations through cash flow generated from its core business as well as investment and other
income. As a part of liquidity management, Company also gets auditors certification annually
on its solvency position prepared as per requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000. S.R.O
828(1)/2015 requires minimum paid-up capital of Rs. 700 million for the life insurance
companies/ takaful operators. VWe are pleased to inform that with the strong financial support
and commitment from our shareholders & sponsors, Company's paid-up capital of Rs. 1.307
billion has been fully compliant with the said SRO.

In 2 recent development, the SECP, vide S.R.O. 310(1)/2025 dated 03 March 2025, has outlined
the revised minimum paid-up capital requirements, which will become effective in phases
starting from 3| December 2026 and culminating on 3| December 2030. The Company has
initiated the planning of comprehensive strategy to ensure phase-wise revised paid-up capital
requirements, which includes but not limited to evaluation of feasible. capital enhancement
options including right issue, bonus share issuance, or direct capital injection.

.Contribution to National Exchequer

Your Company contributes to the national economy in terms of taxes and duties and the
contribution is increasing as the Company is growing. The Company, in the capacity of a tax
payer and withholding agent, has deposited Rs. 276.19 million into the national exchequer.

.Compliance with Shariah principles

The requirements set out by the Takaful Rules, 2012, and directives issued by our respected
Shariah Advisor have been complied with. As required by Takaful Rules, 2012, Independent
Sharia review report on compliance with Takaful rules and our Shariah Advisor’s report are
annexed with the Anriual Report.

Since inception, Pak-Qatar Takaful Group of companies have an independent Shari'ah
Advisory Board (SAB), to oversee all products and operations for Shari'ah compliance:
Respected Justice (Retd.) Mufti Muhammad Taqi Usmani sahab was the founding Chairman of
the group's Shari'ah Board since inception, who later named Mufti Hassaan Kaleem sahab as
his successor in 2019. The compliance function is further supported by Shari'ah Advisor Mufti
Ismatullah sahab, ensuring continued adherence to Shari'ah principles across all business
operations. This privilege supervision has enabled us to have distinction in implementing Sharia
governance practices exceeding statutory requirements. Pak-Qatar Talaful Group also has
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the distinction of being the 'first takaful group’, licensed by the SECP to operate dedicated
General Tzkafuf and Family Takaful companies. Thus, a complete Sharia compliant suite with
wide range of financial planning & protection products for all walk of life.

.Human Resources

Your company is perceived well by customers and stakeholders and the Company's growth
& success endorse the quality, ethical behavior and practices of our workforce. At FQFTL,
people from diverse backgrounds bring a wide array of expertise to cater the ever-changing
needs of its existing and prospective customers. We believe in the employees’ training &
development to boost their knowledge, skills and abilities to cater the challenging business
landscape, which is constantly evolving. Further, as part of diversity & inclusion, we track
gender representation and employment of differently-abled individuals. The company strongly
believes that motivated & good quality employees are its real strength. In line with PQFT’s
philosophy, we foster the culture of giving people wings to fly, roots to come back and reasons
to stay.

ICAP’s approved Training Organization outside Practice {TOoP); We are pleased
to announce that Pak Qatar Group has been recognized by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) as an Approved Training Organizations Outside Practice
(TOoP). By engaging in the TOoP program, we strive to provide aspiring Chartered
Accountants with the essential practical skills, real-world industry exposure; and leadership
experience required to excel in today’s competitive business environment.

We extend our heartfelt gratitude to ICAP for this recognition and look forward to
contribute significantly in the development of highly skilled and qualified Chartered
Accountants,

.Information Technology

The Companyhas aligned itself for efficient use of the information technology resources in
achieving its operational and strategic objectives. Strategic investments in prior years by the
Company in the Technology enabled the Company to continue its operations efficiently &
smoothly during worlk from home through secure YPN connections. Customers were able
to connect with the Company through various channels such as Call Center, Mobile App, and
web portals for enguires and service requests.

The Company maintains its “Disaster Recovery” site and performs “Disaster Recovery” drills.
Further, the Company maintains good standards of Cyber Security and firewalls. The
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Company will continue to strive to create more opportunities for engaging its customers in
the digital arena and provide services when and how customer desires.

17.Rislc-and uncertainties

The Company ‘conducts business in a complex and challenging environment and is therefore
exposed to number of external and internal risks that may present threats to its success and
profitability. Some of the major risks facing the Company include regulatory risk, operational
risks, underwriting risks, market risk, credit risks, retalaful risks, liquidity risk & economic /
political risks etc.

The management is committed to putting risk management at the center of the strategic
decision-making process and to this end runs a robust risk management process that traverses
through ali functions of the Company. This puts the Company at such advantageous position
that provides safeguarding its business & stakeholders. The business decision taken is based
on weighing the associated risks against rewarding opportunities, as we strive to seize business
opportunities that are compatible with our long-term vision. The company has established a
risk management function/department that performs its duties in accordance with the relevant
regulations,

18.Grievance Function

The Company has setup complaints/grievances function for takaful policyholders. Grievance
functions tries its best to resolve the complaints/grievances effectively and efficiently within
shortest possible time. Relevant staff of grievance function resolves the complaints / grievances
within the minimum possible time and act according to the requirements of the Code of
Corporate Governance for insurer.

19. Relationship with other Stakeholders
Your Company continues to maintain good refationship with:

- Its employees by providing a positive work environment;

- lts clients through building trust and providing quality service;

- The business community through honest and fair dealing;

- The Government & regulators through promoting free enterprise along with
competitive market system and complying with all applicable laws; and

- Society in general through providing safe and healthy workplace and provide
employees the opportunity to improve their skills.
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20. Corporate and Financial Reporting Frame Work

a. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.,

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements, and accounting estimatés are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d. The International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Paldstan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements, and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed.

e, The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

f. There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern,

g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.
A Statement to this effect is annexed with the report.

h. The key operating and financial data for the last six years is attached..

i. There is no significant change in objective & strategies from last year, and there is no plan
to discontinue any operations.

j. The balance in the provident & gratuity fund accounts as at the year-end was Rs.
5,584,775 & Rs. 215,597 respectively.

k. The number of board meeting & attendance by director(s) is given under heading ‘Board
of Directors’.

l. The pattern of shareholding of the company is attached.

m. No trading in shares has been made by the Chief Executive, Directors, Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary, their spouses and minor children, except for net disposal of
2,898,254 shares by Mr. Said Gul, and net acquisition of 5,171,466, 1,133,577 & 1,133,577
shares by Pak Qatar investment (Pvt) Ltd, Ms. Sameera and Ms. Fatima, respectively.

21, Compliance with Code of Corpoiate Governance

In November 2016, the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan implemented ‘the
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016', applicable to all insurance/takaful
companies. The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set ot by the
regulatory authorities have been duly complied with. A Statement to this effect is annexed
with the report.
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As part of Corporate Governance, Board maintains Board committees and Management
committees, whose composition & meetings held during the year under review are mentioned
in the aforementioned statement.

12.Board of Directors
The Directors of your Company were elected at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on
29th April 2022 for term of three years, Accordingly, fresh election is scheduled in upcoming

annual general meeting on 30 April 2025.

During the year, seven meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attended as follows:

Directors Number of meetings attended
[ | Sheikh Ali Bin Abdullah Al-Thani _ 3
2 | Abdul Basit Ahmed Al-Shaibei
3 | Ali Ibrahim Al Abdu! Ghani
4 | Said Gul _
5 Zahid Hussain Awan
6
7
8

Mrs. Sameera Usman

I"Mr.'M. Kamran Saleem

B P T RN R PN LW,

Mr. Muhammad Owais Ansari
9 | Mr Farrukh Viqaruddin Jumaidy ' 4
Leave of absence was granted to directors, who could not attend the Board Meetings.

23.Internal Audit function

Internal Audit function is in place for appraisal of internal controls-and monitoring compliance.
The Company® has in place and appropriately staffed, Internal Audit department, Internal
auditor has full access to the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee. Further, the internal
auditor meets senior management to discuss internal audit reports and is fully independent to
access the management at any time to discuss audit issues in order to make the audit process
transparent and effective, To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit
Department reports functionally to the Board Audit Committee and administratively to the
CEO.

Audit Committee (the Committee) oversees the effective implementation of a sound internal
control system including compliance with control procedures, The Audit Committee is
assisted by the Internal Auditor in reviewing the adequacy of operational controls and in
monitoring and managing risks to provide reasonable assurance that such system continues




—

24,

25.

26.

27.

PAK-QATAR 4 JJ_@,L

FAMILY TAKAFUL

Tagether for the Future

e

to operate satisfactorily and effectively in the Company and to add value and improve the
Company's operations by providing independent and objective assurance.

Compliance Framework

A compliance frameworl outlines the regulatory compliance standards and regulations
relevant to the organization. We comply with laws and regulations promulgated by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The Company also adheres with the laws and
regulations promulgated by Federal and provincial -governments as are relevant to the
Company. We consider compliances of the relevant laws and rules as the foremost priority.

Compliance Officer is responsible for the compliance function. Policies and procedures are
amended whenever required for effective, efficient and smooth operations. The Compliance
framework is part and parcel of internal control framework of the Company, main purpose
being, to ensure and remain compliant.

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) & Counter Terrorism Financing (CTF)

The Company is keen to implement & adhere the requirements of the SECP to cater the
relevant risk and exposure. In this connection, the management has implemented the AML &
CTF Policy through the utilization of relevant modern tools, techniques and by amending the
procedures accordingly. The Company has also conducted / arranged trainings of its staff with
regards to AML and CTF,

Auditors

The retiring auditors, Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants are eligible for reappointment. On
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company has
reccmmended their appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending 2025, who
have indicated their consent to act as auditors,

Appreciation & Acknowledgement

Your company's performance during the year would not have been possible without passion,
commitment and hard work of both the employees and the management. On behalf of the
Board of Directors; we wish to place our thanks and sincere appreciation for the continued
support & guidance from respected Shari'ah Board.
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We also acknowledge the support of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as
the apex regulator and appreciate various regulatory and ease of doing business measures
initiated. On behalf of the Board of Directors, we thank our policyholders, intermediaries and
reinsurers for reposing their unstinted faith in the Company, and we are sure of continuing
to share our success with all of them.

Conclusion

In conclusion, we bow, beg and pray to Aimighty Allah, Ar-Rahman-Ar-Rahim, for the
continued showering of His blessings, guidance, strength, health, and prosperity upon us, our
Company, Country and all other stakeholders. Ameen, Summa Ameen.

By Order of the Board

L

Chief Executive Officer Director

Dated: 09 April 2025
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'SIX:YEARS' KEY. OPERATING & FINANCIALDATA™ -
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Gross contribution 28,817,017 16,295,690 10,235,624 9,986,417 7,961,475 8,287,057
Revenue & PRI account
Contribution - net of retakaful 28,399,184 15,846,874 9,771,659 9,555,201 7,554,834 7,861,433
Surrenders & Maturities 15,000,277 8,147,648 4,572,642 4,257,898 3,246,602 2,812,533
NetClaims under PTF 2,490,159 2,504,870 2,045,701 1,537,016 1,325,329 1,645,503
Net lnvestment. income (PIF} 9,624,999 6,943,643 258,677 (69,518} 2,992,255 2,350,400
Net investment income (PTF} 68,310 54,257 67,584 55,860 45,178 51,633
Net Investment inceme {SHF} 190,947 275,181 163,918 148,722 167,150 189,982
Compmission expense 598,981 628,211 847,916 1,071,538 894,446 999,168
Policy stamps 15,200 10,836 22,865 31,210 26,886 25,208
Yotal administrative expenses 1,745,431 1,6_19,66(} 1,684,336 1,194,428 1,186,179 1,192,269
Surplus / (Deficit} In PTF 8,440 {62,378) 147,622 {37,968) 26,81% (23,963)
Profit before tax ‘366,456 192,113 184,620 224,674 208,122 84,070
Profit after tax 269,721 156,298 145,091 175,329 163,563 55,241
Balance sheet
tnvestments including bank deposits 58,135,763 39,613,649 29,149,850 28,530,687 27,22(,588 22,980,553
Deferred tax asset - - 13,534 - - 3,353
Other assets 3,575,332 3,615,728 3,269,546 2,780,781 2,339,370 2,241,763
Fixad assets 510,022 559,695 575,613 529,854 569,830 615,037
Total assets 62,221,117 43,789,072 33,008,542 31,841,362 30,129,788 25,840,706
issued, subscribed & paid up capital 1,307,124 1,307,124 1,307,124 1,307,124 1,307,124 1,307,124
Accumulated Surplus/{deficit) & Gard-e-Hasna 542,859 346,774 274,154 161,614 150,541 1,007
Balance of statutory funds 57,365,644 39,261,402 29,176,047 28,228,470 27,136,292 23,367,668
Other iabilities 3,005,490 2,873,772 2,251,177 2,144,154 1,235,831 1,164,007
Total equity & liabifities 62,221,117 43,789,072 33,008,542 31,841,362 30,129,788 25,840,706
Financial ratios
Profitability
Profit / {loss} before tax / Gross contribution 1.27% 1.18% 1.80% 2.25% 2.61% 1.01%
Profit / {los$) bafore tax / Net contributian 1.20% 1.21% 1,89% 2.35% 2.75% 1.07%
Prefit / {loss) after tax / Grdss cantribution 0.94% 0.96% 1.46% 1.76% 2.05% 0.67%
Profit / {loss) after tax / Net contribution £.95% 0.99% 1.53% 1.83% 2.17% 0.70%
Net claims & surrenders / Net contribution 61.50% 67.22% 62.73% 60.65% 60.57% 56.71%
Cammission / Gross contribution 2.08% 3.85% 8.28% 10.73% 12,49% 12.06%
Administrative expenses / Gross contribution 6.06% 9.94% 16.46% 11.96% 14.90% 14,39%
Net investment income f Met contribution 35.16% 45.90% 5.03% 1.46% 42.42% 32.97%
Return to shareholders
Return on equity 14.58% 8.45% 9.43% 11.94% 11.22% 4.22%
Earning per share (pre-tax) 2.8C 1:.47 141 1,72 1.59 0.64
Earning per shard (after-tak) 206 1.20 1.14 1.34 1.25 0.42
Net assets per share {SHF} 14,15 12.65 12.10 11.24 11,15 10.01
Return on assets {SHF) 11.10% 7.08% 7.04% 8.87% 8.58% 3.13%
Performance liquidity
Current ratio {Times} 1.02 1.03 1.03 1.03 1.03 1.03
Totat labllities / Equities (Times) - SHF 0.31 (.34 0.34 0.35 031 0.35
Totai Habiiities / Eguities (Times) « Total 32.63 25.48 19.87 20.68 19.67 1875
Paid up capital / Total assets 2.10% 2.99% 3.96% 4.11% 4.34% 5.06%
Equity / Tota! assets 2.97%. 3.78% 4,79% 4.61% 4.84% 5.06%
Cash flows
Net cash flow from operating activities 8,647,317 3.422,517 836,081 1,492,852 869,827 674,550
Net cash flow from investing activities (8,232,374)  (2,568,797) {1,130,240) {869,043} {2,717,176) 724,815
Net cash flow from financing activities {65,356) (65,356) - [92,930) “ {58,566}
Net change in cash & cash equivatent 349,587 788,764 {274,159) 530,879 {1,847,349) 1,340,795
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
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Part - 1
Name of the Company PAK-QATAR FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED
CUIN number 0054338

Part-2

Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 31 December 2023

{Number of shareholders |

Shareholdings

[ Total shares held |

shareholding from 1 to 100 shares

shareholding from 101 to 1000 shares

shareholding from 1001 fo 5000 shares

By
4 shareholding from 10000001 to 30000000 shares 60,524 038
1 shareholding from 30000001 to 50000000 shares 50,369,824
50 Total 130,712,440

{Categories of shareholders i | Shares held | [ Percentage |
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children.

Sheikh Ali Bin Abduliah 13,300,734 10.18%

Said Gul 2,614,249 2,00%
Zahid Hussain Awan 1,203,551 0.92%

Ali Ibrahirm Al Abdui Ghani 0.00%
Abdul Basit Ahmad Al-Shaibei 1,563,484 1.20%
Sameera Usman 5,228,498 4:00%
Owais Ahmed Yusuf 0.00%
Farrukh. Vigarudin Junaidy 0.00%
Muhammad Kamran Saleeem 717,092 0.55%
Associated Campanies, undertakings and related parties.

Pak-Qatar invesiment (Pvi.) Lid. 50,369,824 38.53%
Qatar International [slamic Bank 13,004,223 8.95%
Qatar Islamiic Insurance Company 14,341,019 10.97%
FWU AG 19,873,062 15.20%

NIT and ICP 0.00%
Banks, Davelopment Financial Institutions, Nen-Banking Financial Institutions.

Qatar International |stamic Bank 13,009,223 9.85%
Qatar Islamic Insurance Company 14,341,019 10.97%
FWU 19,873,062 15.20%
[nsurance Companies

Qatar Islamic Insurance Company 14,341,019 10.97%
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 0.00%
Share holders holding 10%

Pak-Qatar [nvestment (Private) Limited 50,369,824 38.53%
Sheikh Ali Bin Abdullah 13,300,734 10.18%
FWU AG 19,873,062 15.20%
Qatar |slamic thsurance Company 14,341,019 10.97%
General Public 8,491,702 6.50%
Local 6,685,804 511%
Foreign 1,805,898 1.38%
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR
INSURERS, 2016

Pal-Qatar Family Takaful Limited

For The Year Ended December 31, 2024

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers,
2016 for the purpose of establishing a framework of good gavernance, whereby an insurer is managed in

compliance with the best practices of corporate governance,

Pak-Qatar Family Takafut Limited (PQFTL or The Company), being an insurer, has applied the principles
contained in the Code in the following manner:

l. PQFTL ensures representation of independent non-executive directors and facilitates directors
represerting minority intereésts on its Board of directors. At present, the Board includes:

Category Names

Independent Director Mr. Farrukh Vigaruddin Junaidy

Non-Executive Directors H.E. Sheikh Ali Bin Abdullah Al Thani
Mr, Said Gul

Mr, Abdul Basit Ahmad Al-Shaibei
Mr. Ali Ibrahim Al Abdul Ghani
Mr. Zahid Hussain Awan

Mr, Muhammad Qwais Ansari

Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem
Mr. Waqas Ahmad*

Female Director, Non - Executive Mrs. Sameera Usman

*The chief executive is a ‘decmed director’ under section 188(3) of the Companies Act, 2017
wheteas the number of elected/nominated directors on the Board are nine (9).

The independent director meets the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code of
Corporate Governaice for Insurers, 2016.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director-on more than seven listed
companies, including PQFTL.

3. All the resident directors of PQFTL are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted
in payment of any foan toa banking company, a DFI or a NBFI or, being a member of a stock
exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4, No casual vacancy arose onthe Board of Directors during the year.

5. PQFTL has prepared a Code of Conduct, which has- been disseminated among all the directors
and employees of the Company.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.
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All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment of the Chief Executive Officer, other executive directors and key officers, have been
taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
clected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written
notices of the Board meeting, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least
seven (7) days before the meeting. The minutes of the meeting were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

The Board has established system of sound internal control, which is effectively implemented at
all levels within the Company. PQFTL has adopted and complied with all the necessary aspects
of internal controls given in the code.

The orientation course was arranged for the directos in the form of booklet to apprise them of
their duties arid responsibilities and also about changes in Laws and Regulations.

There was no change of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the year 2024,
Following the resignation of Mr. Tahir Lateef, Mr. Danish Raza has been elevated as the Head
of Internal Audit. The Board has approved remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
and cornplied with relevant requirements of the regulations.

The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and fully describes the salient matters required
to be disclosed.

. The financial statements of PQFTL were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer before approval of the Board.

. The directors, Chief Exeeutive Officer and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares

of PQFTL other than disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

. PQFTL has complied with alt the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code of

Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016, except for limited scope review by the statutory
auditors of half-yearly financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2024, Due to practical
difficulties, the Company did not engage external auditors for half-yearly review June 30, 2024.
Furthermore; being an unlisted Company; the stakeholders has not been significantly impacted
in meeting business goals in this regard.

The Board has formed the following Management Committees:
Underwriting & Re-Takaful Commiitee.
Name of the Member Category
Mr. Zahid Hussain Awan Chairman
Mr. Waqas Ahmed Member
Mr, Muhammad Ahsan Qureshi Member
Mr. Adnan Arif Member
Mr. Iinran Lakhani Member
Mr. Athar Ali Member
Mr, Muhammad Shahzad Member & Secretary



Claims Settlement Comniittee:
Name of the Member
Mr. Said Gul
Mr. Wagas Ahmed
Mr. Junaid Asghar
Mr, Obaid Hussain Qureshi
Mr. Nasir Ali Soomro
Mr, Ramesh Kumar

Risk Management & Compliance Commrittee

Name of the Member
Mr. Zahid Hussain Awan

Mr. Waqas Ahmed

Mr. Junaid Asghar

Mr. Muhamimad Ahsan Qureshi
Mr. Danish Raza

Mr, Saifuddin Shaikh

Mr. Kashan Rafique Ahmed
Mr. Muhammad Shahzad
Mr, Adnan Arif

Mufti Shakir Siddiqui

Mr, Athar Ali

Mer. Obaid Hussain Qureshi

17. The Board has formed the following Board Committee

Ethics, Human Resowrce & Remuneration Comniittee:

Name of the Member
Mr, Said Gul

Mr. Zahid Hussain Awan
Mrs. Sameera Usman
Mr, Muthammad Kamran Saleem

Investment Commitlee:
Name of the Member
Mr. Zahid Hussain. Awan
Mr. Said Gul
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem
Mr, Wagas Ahmed
Mr. Abdul Rahim Abdul Wahab
Mr. Muhamimad Ahsan Qureshi

PAK-QATAR
EAMILY TAKAFUL
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Category

Chairman

Membeér

Member

Member

Member

Member & Sccretary

Category
Chairman

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member & Secretary

Category
Chairman

Member
Member
Member & Secretary

Category
Chairman

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member & Secretary

18. TheBoard has formed an audit committee. It comprises of four (4) members, of whom 3-are non-
execitive directors and | executive dircctor. The chairman of the Committee is an independent

director.
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Audit Commiittee:
Name of the Member
Mr. Farrukh Vigaruddin Junaidy
Mr. Ali Ibrahim Al Abdul Ghani
Mr. Zahid Hussain Awan
Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem
Mr. Danish Raza

PAK-QATAR

FAMILY TAKAFUL
e
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Category
Chairman

Member
Member
Meinber
Secretary

19. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have béen formed, documented and advised
to the ¢ornmittee for compliance. The frequency of meeting of the committees were as follows:

Name of Commiittee

Frequency

A,  Underwriting & Re-Takaful Committee Quarterly
B. Claims Settlement Commiftee Quarterly
C. Risk Management & Compliance Committee Quarterly
D. Ethies;, Humar Resource & Remuneration Committee Twice a year
E. Investment Committee Quarterly
F.  Audit Committee Quarterly

2Q. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

21. The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finaicial Officer, Compliance Officer and the Head of
Internal Audit possess such qualification and experience as required under the Code of Corporate
Governance for Insurers, 2016. The Appointed Actuary of the Company also meets the
conditions as laid down in the said Code. Moreover, the persons heading the underwriting, claim,
re-takaful, risk management and grievance functions/ departments possess qualification and
experience of direct relevance to their respective functions, as required under section {2 of the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000);

Name of the Person

Mr. Wagas Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Kamran Saleem
Mr. Muhammad Ahsan Qureshi

Mr. Obaid Hussain Qureshi

Mr. Abdul Rahim Abdul Wahab
Mr, Danish Raza

Mr. Athar Ali*

Mr. Junaid Asghar

Mr. Muhammad Shahzad

Mr. Ramesh Kumar

Designation

Chief Executive Officer

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Compliance Officer & Head of Grievance Department
Appointed Actuary

Head of Internal Audit

Head of Re-Takaful & Risk Management

Head of Operations

Head of Underwriting

Head of Claims

* Mr. Athar Ali passed away in October 2024, The management extends its deepest condolences to his
family and acknowledges his valuable contributions to the organization.
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The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved
by the Commission in terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No.
XXX1X 0f 2000). The statutory auditors have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do
not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethies as adopted by the
ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other-services and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

The actuary appointed by the company has confirmed that he or his spouse and minor children
do not hold shares of the Company.

The Board ensures that the appointed actuary complies with the requirements set out for him in
the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

The Board ensures that the investment policy of the Company has been drawn up in accordance
with the provisiens of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

. The Board ensures that the risk management system of the Company is in place as per the

requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016,

The company has set up a risk management function/department, which carries out its tasks as
covered under the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurérs, 2016.

The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the PQFTL gets itself rated from
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited and The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA)
which dre being used by its risk management function/ department and the respective Committee
as a risk monitoring tool. The rating assigned by the said rating agencies on December 07, 2023
and 26™ June 2024 respectively are A++ with ‘Stable’ outlooks.

. The Board has set up a grievance department, which fully complies with the requirements of the

Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2616,

The Company has not obtained exemption from the Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan in respect of the requirements of Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code of Corporate Governance for
Insurers, 2016 have been complied with, except as mentioned in point 15 above.

Order of the Board

Chief Executive Officer Direc@
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2024 2023
---- Rupees ----

Total Investment Income of Shareholders' Fund 290,946,849 275,180,815
Other Revenues 16,062,810 32,465,318
Total Investment Income & Other Revenues 307,009,659 307,646,134
Other expenses (14,019,220) (17,230,880)
Surplus / (Deficit) in shareholders' sub fund 73,465,909 (98,302,603)

59,446,689 (115,533,483)
Profit before Taxation 366,456,348 192,112,651
Taxation (96,735,200) (35,814,547)
Profit for the year after Tax 269,721,148 156,298,104
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Shariah Review Report to the Board of Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Y1 il dana b yall 5 el s e 230l 5 3l 5 aalal) oy db 2eall

MJ‘OM‘HMJAX&J

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited
(hereafter referred to as “the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

During the year, the Shariah Advisory Board conducted online meetings to discuss various matters.
Additionally, we reviewed all types of products, documents, MOUs, and business concerns of the
Company. Based on the provided information and explanations, and to the best of our understanding, our
findings are as follows:

(i) The Company's financial transactions, along with the relevant documentation and
procedures for the year ended December 31, 2024, were in compliance with the guidelines
issued by the Shariah Advisory Board and the requirements of the Takaful Rules 2012.

(ii) The prescribed Shariah Screening Criteria were duly met in all investment and financial
transactions.

(i) We have realized the amount 7,089,026 /- as Shariah non-Compliant income which has
been credited to the relevant charity account.

(iv) Moreover, we also agree with the accounting principles adopted for incorporation of
Participants’ Takaful Fund (Wagqf Fund) into the accompanying financial statements.

(v) The Shariah Compliance Department remains actively engaged in promoting awareness of
Takaful and its processes among distribution staff, educational institutions, and corporate
sectors. In 2024, multiple awareness sessions were conducted in collaboration with the
Training Department as well as independently.

(vi) In light of these observations, we confirm that Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited has
successfully maintained Shariah compliance across all its activities. We commend the
Company’s efforts in ensuring strict adherence to Islamic financial principles and encourage
continued diligence in upholding Shariah standards in the future.

“And Allah Knows Best”

3}} / T

Mufti Muhammad Hassan Kaleem Dr. Mufti Ismatullah
Chairman - Shariah Advisory Board Shariah Advisor & Member - Shariah Advisory Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the statement of profit and loss account
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit and loss account and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state
of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income of the
Shareholder's Fund and surplus reserve of Participant’s Fund , the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphases for matter

We draw attention to note 28.1 to the financial statements where it is disclosed that the Company has challenged the
scope and applicability of Punjab Sales Tax (PST) and Sindh Sales Tax (SST) on life insurance services. Our opinion is
not medified in this respect.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
not been provided with such other information therefore we cannot report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

)(%
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit and loss account and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) the apportionment of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses between two or more funds has been performed
in accordance with the advice of the appointed actuary;

d) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

e) no zakat was deducted at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is Hena Sadiq.
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PAK-QATAR FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

ASSETS

Property and equipment
intangible assets
tnvestment property

Investments

Equity securities
Government securities
Debt securities

Term deposits

Mutual funds

Advance against investment property
Takaful / Re-takaful receivables
Deposits, loans and other receivables
Taxation - payments less provision
Prepayments

Cash and bank

Total Assets

EQUITY and LIABILITIES

Share capital
Unappropriated profi - net
Shareholders' Equity
Qard -e -Hasna

Total Equity

Wagqf / Participant Takaful Fund (PTF)

Cede money
Accumulated surplus

Total PTFs Equity
Qard -e -Hasna
Total Participants' Takaful Fund

Liabilities
Deferred tax

* Takaful liabilities

Staff retirement benefits

Contributions received in advance
Takaful / Re-takaful payable

Other creditors and accruals

Lease liabilities

Tax provision - payment less provision

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of thes

X .

i,

Chief Executive Officer

SN Ny

P———

11
12
13
14
15

16
17

18
19

20

21
22
24

25

26
27

28

Aggregate
Shareholders' Participants’ December 31, December 31,
Fund Fund 2024 2023
: (Rupees)

433,948,479 - 433,948,479 474,986,768
76,074,407 - 76,074,407 84,707,828
- 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 1,124,510,000
510,022,886 1,200,000,000 1,710,022,886 1,684,204 596
39,764,835 - 39,764,835 7,084,858,770
985,885,562 188,003,493 1,173,889,055 4,420,170,012

- - - 89,437,480

- 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
379,675,827 52,110,908,583 52,490,584,410 23,937,145,826
1,405,326,224 52,348,912,076 £3,754,238,300 35,581,710,088
3,775,000 318,149,000 321,924,000 132,399,000

- 842,186,279 842,186,279 1,109,930,970
163,791,250 78,163,183 241,954,433 326,384,877

- 941,516,559 841,516,559 901,724,562
27,748,980 - 27,748,980 20,778,575
319,977,817 4,061,547,895 4,381,525,712 4.031,939,196
2,430,642,157 59,790,474,992 62,221,117,149 43,789,071,864
1,307,124,400 - 1,307,124,400 1,307,124,400
802,858,966 - 802,858,966 606,773,532
2,109,983,366 - 2,109,983,366 1,913,887,932
{260,000,000) (260,000,000) {260,000,000)
1,849,983,366 - 1,849,983,366 1,653,807,932
- 500,000 500,000 500,000

- 706,020,845 706,020,945 697,580,853

- 706,520,945 706,520,945 698,080,853

- 260,000,000 260,000,000 260,000,000

- 966,520,945 966,520,945 958,080,853

7,823,121 - 7,823,121 12,508,208

- 58,104,031,781 58,104,031,781 39,673,614,394
106,019,063 - 106,019,063 84,767,974

- 507,886,930 507,886,930 751,488,717

- 143,681,018 143,681,016 117,046,472

256,037,932 68,354,320 324,392,252 339,880,513

133,995,874 - 133,995,874 184,547,201

76,782,801 _ - 76,782,801 13,239,600

580,658,791 58,823,954,047 59,404,612,838 41,177,093,079

2,430,642,1 57 59,780,474,992 43,789,071,864

62,221,117,14%

financial statements.

B
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PAK-QATAR FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - PARTICIPANTS' FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024

Participants' fund

Gross contributions revenue
Wakala fee

Re-takaful contribution ceded
Net contribution revenue

Investment income

Net realised fair vaiue gains on invesiments

Net fair value gains / (losses) on investments
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment property
Impairment on debt securities

Surplus income

Net income

Takaful benefits
Recoveries from re-takaful
Takaful operator fee
Surplus distribution

Other expenses

Net takaful benefits

Net change in takaful lighilities (Other than cutstanding claims)

Surplus / {deficit) reserve for the year [ Participant Takaful Fund (PTF) ]

Note

29
30

3
32
33
10

35
35
36

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

N

Chief Executive Officer Director

Director

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
rmemmnmecenenimenmes (RUPEES) =mmoncosrimrmmernns
28,817,016,910  16,296,690,302
(1,352,815,349)  (1,507,754,812)
27,464,201,561  14,788,335,480

(417,833,165) (449,816,541)

27,046,368,396

14,339,118,949

570,597,925
3,696,819,800
5,459,666,815
75,490,000
(33,437,500)

669,423,985
2,637,532,256
3,840,474,268

13,643,705

82,815,115

9,769,137,039

7,143,889,329

36,815,505435  21,483,008,278
{17,773,459,411){| (10,954,415,360)
283,023,444 301,897,982
{1,066,243,573) (641,814,243)
{64,091,014) (99,852,952)

{89,492,616)

(88,969,189)

{(18,710,262,870)

(18,096,802,473)

{11,483,153,762)

(10,062,232,213}

8,440,093

(62,377,697)

Chairman
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PAK-QATAR FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - SHAREHOLDERS' FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note
Shareholders' fund
Wakaia fee 30
Commission expense 37
Takaful operator fee 36
investment income 31
Net reaiised fair value gains on investments 32
Cther income 34
Net income
Acquisition expenses 37
Marketing and administration expenses 38
Other expenses 39
Total expenses
Mark up on finance lease 27
Profit before tax
Taxation 40
Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income
ftems not to be recognised to profif and loss account in subsequest year
Actuarial loss on staff retirement benefit 246.2
Tax effect
Items that may be recognised to profit and loss. account in subsequent years
Change in unrealised gains on available for sale investments
Loss on disposal reclassified to profit or loss account
Tax effect
Change in unrealised (losses) / gains available for-sale-investments - net of tax
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year (Share holder fund-SHF)
Earnings per share 41

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these findhcial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director

armm—

December 31,
2024

1,352,815,349
(598,981,272)

December 31,
2023

1,607,754,812
(628,211,309)

753,834,077 879,543,503
1,066,243,573 641,814,243
217,207,289 181,956,378
73,739,560 93,224,438
16,062,810 32,465,318
1,373,253,231 949 460,377
2,127,087,308  1,829,003,880
(815,210,112){ |  (803,409,785)
(904,330,005)| | (790,553,037)
(14,019,220} (17,230,880)

{1,733,55,336)

(1.611,193,702)

(27,071,624) (25,607,528)
366,456,348 192,112,650
{96,735,200) (35,814,547)
269,724,148 156,208,103
932,635 (4,093,333)
(270,464) 1,187,067
662,171 {2.906,266)
61,647,066 160,364,238
{74,240,940) (62,414,762)
3,652,223 (28,405,248)
(8,941,650) 69,544,228
{8,279,480) 66,637,962
261,441,668 222,936,065
2,08 1.20
Chairman




Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity

As at December 31, 2024
Attributabie to Participants of the Company
Accumulated
Ceds Money surplus / Qard-e-Hasna Total
(deficit)
E_ {Rupees)
Balahce at January 01, 2023 500,000 769,958,550 175,000,000 935,458,550
EA Accumulated surplus - (62,377,607) - {62,377,697)
- Coentribution by Shareholder's Fund - - 85,000,000 85,000,000
Balance as at December 31, 2023 500,000 687,580,853 260,000,000 $58,080,853
... Accumulated surpius - 8,440,082 - 8,440,092
Contributicn by Shareholder's fund - - - .
Balance as at December 31, 2024 500,000 706,020,945 260,000,000 986,520,945
Attributable to Shareholders of the Company
Net Unappropriated profit/ (Accumulated loss)
e Surplus /
. Deficit) on Capital Net
Unapproptiated {
Share Capital  Accumulate d revajuatien  Contribution Unappropriated Total
g Profiti(Loss) of avallable to-Statutory Ac_cumulated
for sala Funds Profit/{l oss)
- Investments
(Rupees)
. Balance at Januar_y 01, 2023 1,307.124.4&0 540,556,776 (81.363,083) (175,000,000) 449,193,693 1,5681,318,083
Total comprehensive income
i for the year ended December M, 2023
Profit for the year - 156,298,103 - - 156,298,103 156,298,103
Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax - (2,906,266) 68,544,228 - 66,637,962 66,637,862
- 153,391,837 60,644,228 - 222,936,065 222,936,065
Transactions with the owners
o~ Dividend for the year ended December 31, 2023 - (65,356,226) - - (65,356,2286) {65,356,226)
@ Re. 0.5 per'share i-g'5%.
Qard-e-Hasna retumed by statutory fund - - - {85,000,000) - {85,000,000)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (65,356,226) - {85,000,000) (85,356,226) (150,356,226}
Balance at December 31, 2023 1,307,124,400 628,592,387 (21,818,855) (ZE0.0DO,DDD) 608,773,532 1,653,897,532
Total comprehenslve income
- for the year ended December 31, 2024
Profit for the year 2] 268,721,148 - - 269,721,148 269,721,148
Qther comprehensive income for the vear W | 662,171 {8,941,650) - (8.279,480). (8,279,480)
- Total comprehensive Income for the year - 270,383,319 (8,941,650) - 261,441,668 261,441,668
Transaction with the owners
Clvidend for the year ended December 31, 2024 i} . _ ;
- @ Re. 0:5 per share i-e 5% (65,356,234) (65,356,234) (65,356,234)
Qard-e-Hasna returned by statitory fund - - - - - -
- {66,356,234) - - {65,356,224) {65,356,234)
- Balance at December 31, 2024 1,307,124,400 833,619,4E' (30,760,505) (260,000,000} 802,358,966 1,849,983,366
The annexed nales from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financlal st ements,
. ‘& :
L3
— -
Chlef Execuljve Officer Director Chairman




PAK-QATAR FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Operating Cash flows
(a) Takaful activities
" Contributions received —
Relakaful payment - net
Claims / benefits paid
Commission paid
Wakala fees / Modarib received
Wakala fees f Modarib paid
Net cash flow from takaful activities

{b) Other operating activities
tncome tax paid
Management and other expenses paid
Other operating reeipts / (payments)
Advances and deposits’
Surplus distributed
Net cash flow from other operating activities

Total cash flow from all operating activities

(c) Investment activities
Profit / return received
Payment for investments
Proceeds from disposal of investments
Dividend received
Fixed capitai expenditure
Proceeds from disposai of operating assets
Total cash flow from investing activities
{d) Financing activities
Dividend paid )
Tota! cash flow from financing activities

et cash flow from all activities
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation to profit and loss account

Cash flow from operating activities

Surplus of participants® funds for the year
(Before distribution and changes in reserves)

Exchange gain / {loss)

Depreciation expense

Amortisation expense.

Actuarial {gain)./loss - retirement benefits obligation

Tax paid ]

{Loss) / Gain on disposai of operating assets

Return on investments

Long term deposits

fricrease / (decrease) in receivables and other assets

{Increase) / decrease In [abilities

Fair value gain / (loss) on investmenis

Net realised fair vafue gain on investments
income tax expense.

Profit { Deficit for the year (after Tax / Reserves)

‘:33

Chief Executije Officer

Note

19

Aggregate
Shareholders’ Participants’ December 31, December 31,
Fund Fund 2024 2023
{Rupees)
- 28,832,636,468 || 28,832,636,468 || 16,301,948,155
- {99,651,831) (89,651,831) {9,187,132)
- {17.439,844,203}|] (17,439,844,203)i (10,561,347 173)
{593,069,612) ' -  (593,069,612) {652 498,913}
2,415,058,921 - 2,419,058,921 2,149,569,055
- (2,419,058,921)|| (2,419,058,921)|1 (2,149 568,055)
1,825,989,308 8,874,081,513  10,700,070,822 5.048,913,937
{34,495,327) (39,791,986) (74,287,323) (92,108,283)
(1,644,705,389) - {1,644,705,389)(| (1,428,710,824)
© 2,602,086 {78,203,328) {75,601,242) {4,019,668)
(494,436} {193,574,477) {194,0568,913) {1,305,000)
: - (64,091,014) (64,091,014) {99,852,952)
{1,677,053,066) {375,660,815)  {2,052,753,881)  (1,625896,727)
148,896,243 8,498,420,698 8,647,316,941 3.422.817,210
198,014,660 4,247,219,333 4,445,233,093 3,280,086,530
{1,307,125,386)|| (94,781,583,400)(| (96,088,718,786}; (56.582,275,658}
1,362,903,363 || 81,974,601,092 || 83,337,504,455 || 50,715,024,774
- 128,663,100 128,663,100 183,960,500
(55,411,311) - (55,411,311) (178,967,187); .
354,350 - 354,350 3,373,996
198,735,676  (8,431,109,875)  (8,232,374,199)  (2.568,797.047)
(65,356,226) ! -~ | te5356,226)|[  (65,356.226)]
(65,356,226) - {65,356,226) (65,356,226}
282,275,693 67,310,823 349,586,516 788,763,937
37,702,424 4,044,237,072 ©  4,081,838,196 3,283,175,259
319,877,817 -4,114,547,885 4,431,525,712 4,081,938,196
148,896,243 $,498,420,698 8,647,316,941 3,422,917,210
{18,725) - {18,725) 53,016
{160,795,284) - {160,795,284) (168,411,788}
{9,181,753) - (9,181,753) (9,059,505)
{932,634) - " {932,634) 4,083,333
34,485,327 39,791,986 74,287,323 92,108,283
{58,291) - {58,291) 34,313
217,207,289 570,597,925 787,805,214 851,380,363
494,436 193,574,477 - 194,068,913 1,305,000
2,602,086 {22,224,279) {19,622,193) (61,433,550)
(1,638,973} {314,847,552) {316,486,525) (471,746.727)
61,647,066 5426,229,315 5,487,876,381 4,034,882, 564
73,739,560  .3,696,819,800 3,770,559,360 2,630,756,604
(96,735,200) - {96,735,200) (35,814,547)
599,721,148 18,088,362,380  18,358,083,528 _ 10.335,879.197

Director

AN

. Chairman ;




PAK-QATAR FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED
NOTES COMPRISING MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Pak Qatar Family Takaful Limited (the Company)} was incorporated in Pakistan as an unguoted public company limited by
shares on March 15, 2006 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The Company
received certificate of registration on August 16, 2007 under Section 6 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. The principal
business activity of the Company is to undertake family takaful business in accordance with the Insurance Ordinance
2000, Securities and Exchange Commission, Repealed Insurance Rules, 2002 {now Insurance Rules, 2017) and Takaful
Rules, 2012. The registered office of the Company Is situated at suite # 101-1 05, Business Arcade, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S,
Karachi. The major shareholder is Pak Qatar Investment (Private) Limited who holds 34.58 percent holding.

To carry out the family takaful business, the Company has established the Takaful Business Statutory Fund as per Rule 8
of the Repealed Takaful Rules, 2005 (now Takaful Rules, 2012) and Section 15 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. The
Takaful Business Statutory Fund has the following companents in accordance with the Waqf-Wakala Model adopted by
the Company.

i) Participant Takaful Fund (PTF i.e. PQFTL Waqf): The Company formed a Wagf on August- 17, 2007 under a trust
deed executed by the Company with a cede amount of Rs. 500,000. Wagf deed also governs the relationship of the
shareholders and policyholders for the. management of the fakaful operations, investment of participants' and
shareholders’ respective funds approved by the Shariah Board established by the Company and to manage the risk
related contributions and payment of Takaful benefits. The Wagf supports the following:

a) Individual Family,
b} Group Family; and
c) Group Health.

i) Participant Investment Fund (PIF); Investment component of the participants contributions are managed in PIF which
represents the aggregate of the individual Participant’s Investment Accounts (P1A).

As per Section 21 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 capital contribution to a statutory fund is distributable back to the
shareholders’ fund subject to the written advice of the appointed actuary.

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have bieen prepared in line wilh the format issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through Insurance Rules, 2017 (the Rules) vide SRO 89(1)/2017 and Insurance
Accounting Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) vide SRO 88(|)/2017 dated 09 February 2017, with appropriate
madifications based on the advice of Shariah Advisor of the Company. In this regard, the Company has sought approval
from the SECP vide email dated 29 April, 2019. '

The Company maintains statutory / participants' funds in respect of each class of family takaful business. Assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses referable to respective funds have been recorded accordingly.

Apportionment of assels, liabilities, revenues and expenses, where required, between funds are made on a fair and
equitable basis in accordance with the written advice of the appointed acluary.

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.

These financial statements reflect the financial position and resulis of operations of both shareholders' Fund and
participants’ funds in a manner that the assets, liabilities, income and expenses remain separately identifiable.

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, Approved accounting standards comprise of:

- International FinanciaiqRepmﬁng Standards' (IFRS) issued by International Accounting St?émdards Beard (JASB), as
are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), and Islamic Financial Accouhting Standards (IFAS) issued by
the fnstitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP);
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5.2

- Provision of and directives issued under the Act and Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules, 2017, Takaful
Rules, 2012 and Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017,

In case requirements differ, the provision or directives of the act, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules, 2017,
the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 and Takaful Rules, 2012 shall prevail.

To clarify the applicability of Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 on Takaful business, the Company has applied
through letter number SEC/19-08/20 dated August 09, 2019 which was responded by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide letter ID/OSM/PQFTL2018/1507 dated August 20, 2019 that directed the company
to apply Insurance Accounting Regulation 2017 format to maximum extent possible.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in accounting
poiicies refating to investments, investment property, lease iliabilities, retirement benefits obligation and insurance
liabilittes. These financial stalements have been presented in Pakistani rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS
Amendments and improvements that are effective for the year ended December 31, 2024

The following amendments and improvements are effective for the year ended December 31, 2024, These amendments
and improvements are either not relevant to the Operator's operations or are not expected fo have significant impact on
the Operator's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

- Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' - Clarification on how seller - lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback
transactions;

- Amendments {o IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statemerits' - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
along with Non-current liabilities with Covenants;

- Amendments to IAS 7 *Staternent of Cash Flows' and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments : Disclosures’ - Supplier Finance
Arrangements.

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after
the date mentiined against each of them. These standards, interprefations and the amendments are either not relevant to
the Operator's operations or are-not expected to have significant impact on the Operator's financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Effective Date (accounting
periods beginning on or after)

- Amendments to IAS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange January 01, 2025
Rates' - Clarification on how entity accounts when there is long term lack
of Exchangeability

- {FRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 and December January 01, 2026
2021 Amendments {o IFRS 17)

- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ and IFRS 7 'Financial January 01, 2026
Instruments . Disclosures' - Classification and measurement of financial
instraments

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards (related to IFRS 1, January 01, 2026

IFRS'7,IFRS 8, IFRS 10 and IAS 7)

- Ar:’ﬁendments IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 'Fi‘n‘éncial January 01, 2026

Insfruments : Disclosures’ - Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
Electricity




Sofint,

5.3

54

Other than the aforesaid standards and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also
issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securifies and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan;

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosuresin Financial Statements

- IFRS 19~ Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

The SECP vide SRO 1715 (l) / 2023 dated November 21, 2023 has directed the companies engaged in insurance /
takaful and reinsurance / retakaful to follow IFRS 17 from January 01, 2026. The Company is in the process of
determination of impact assessement of IFRS - 17 on the Gompany's financial statments.

Temporary exemption from application of IFRS 9:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. As notified by the SECP, IFRS 9 is applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after July 01, 2018.

In September 2016, the IASB issued amendments 1o IFRS 4 "Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts' to address issues arising from the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the new insurance
contracts standard (IFRS 17).

The amendments introduce two alternative options of applying IFRS 9 for entities issuing contracts within the scope of
IFRS 4: a lemporary exemption; and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible entities to defer the
implementation date of IFRS 9 until the application of IFRS 17 and continue to apply |AS 39 to financial assets and
liabilities. The overlay approach allows an entity applying IFRS 9 from the effective date to rémove ffrom the profit and loss
account the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that may occur from applying IFRS @ before IFRS 17 is
applied. The Company has applied the temporary exemption which allows the Company to defer the application of IFRS
9,

The tables below set out the fair value as at the end of the reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value
during that period for the following two groups of financial assets separately:

a) financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified datés to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding, excluding any financial assets that meets the
definition of fair value through profit-and loss in IFRS 9, or that is managed and whose performarice is evaluated on a
fair value basis, and

b} all other financial assets.

December31, 2024

Other Financial Assets that will pass the
Financial Assets SPPI test
Financial assets Change in :
unrealized gain Change In
Fair Value _ N Fair Value unrealized gain or
or loss during loss during the year
the year
(Rupees)
Equity securities 39,764,835 (15,215,441} - -
Government securities 188,003,493 - 188,003,493 2,621,567
Debt securities - - - -
Term deposits - - 50,000,000 -
Mutual funds 52,480,584,410 - - -
Takaful / Re-takaful receivables - - 842,186,279 -
Deposits, loans and other receivables “ - 241,954,433 -
Cash and bank - - 4,381,525712 -
52,718,352,738 {15,215,441) 5,703,669,917 2,621,567
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December 31, 2023

Other Financial Assets that will pass the SPP]
Financial Assets test
Financial assets Change in .
. unrealized gain Change in
Fair Value ; Fair Value unrealized gain or
or loss during loss during the year
the year
{(Rupees)
Equity securities 7,084,956,770 470,406,424 - .
Government securities 3,566,760,012 “ 854,410,000 7174,433
Debt securities 89,437,480 . - -
Term deposits - - 50,000,000 -
Mutuai funds 23,937,145,826 - - -
Takaful / Re-takafu! receivables - - 1,109,930,970 -
Deposits, loans and other receivables - - 326,384,877 -
Cash and bank - - 23,937,145,826 -
34,678,300,088 470,406,424 26,277,871,673 7,174,433

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied
inthe preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Leases
Leases (Policy applicable befora 1 January 2019)

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Company as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
items are operating leases. Operaling lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense

in the period in which they it is incurred.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of tirne in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all ieases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

At the commencement date of the lease, the right-of-use asset (RoU) Is initially measured at the present value of lease
liability. Subsequently, RoU assefs are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. RolU assets are depreciated on a siraight-line basis over the shorter of
its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liability measured at the present value of the
congideration (lease payments) to be made over the lease term and is adjusted for lease prepayments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinabfe, in which case
the lessee may use the incremental rate of borrowing. After the commencement date, the carrying amount of lease
liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
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Determination of the fease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination options (Company as a lessee)

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the iease if if is reasonably cerain to be exercised, or any penods covered by an oplien to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably cerfain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease confracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option {o renew or terminate the
lease, That is, it considers all relevant faciors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise of not to exercise the option to renew or
to terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate {‘IBR') to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have fo pay to borrow over
a similar térm, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the Rol.in a similar
economic environment. The. Company estimates the IBR using cbservable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific adjustments (such as stand-alone credit rating, or to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease).

Property and equipment - operating assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged using reducing
balance method at the rates specified in note 8 to the financial statements. Depreciation on addilions is charged from the
month in which asset Is available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal, Gains and losses on
disposals are taken to profit and loss account and other comprehensive income.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, al each reporting date.

Subsequent cost are included in the asssts' carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and the cost of
the ilem can be measured reliably. Maintienance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account and other
comprehensive income,

Asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset} is included in the profit and loss account and other comprehensive income in the year the
asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment loss. Amortisation on intangible
fixed assets is charged to income applying the straight line method at the rates specified in note. 9 to the financial
stalements after taking into account residual value, if any.

Full month's amortisation is calcutated from the month the assets are available for use, whereby the cost of the intangible
asset is amortised over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits. are expected to flow to the Company. The
useful life and amortisation method is reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Capital work-in-progress

All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under
capital work in progress. It also includes advances to suppliers in respect of tangible and intangible assets. These are
transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less
impairment in value, if any. .
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6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.2

Investments
Classification

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where the Company has positive intent and ability to
hold to malurity, are classified as held-to-maturity. Investments acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near future are classified as held for trading. All investments that have not been classified as either
held to maturity, held for trading or as fair value through profit or loss have been classified as available-for-sale.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial instruments are recognised in the financial statements when, and only when, the company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given, including transaction costs

associaled with the investments, except for held for trading investments and at fair value through profit or loss categories,
wherein the transaction costs are charged to the profit and loss account and other comprehensive income.

Investment categories and subsequent measurement
Investments

The company classifies its invesiments into the following categories:
Fair Value through profit or loss

Investments at FVTPL comprise held-for-trading investments and investments other. than held-for-trading that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

a) Held-for-trading investments are investments that are acquired and held principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term or it is part of a portfolio of identified securities that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short term profit faking. ‘

b} Investments other than held-for-trading that are designated at fair value are classified as such if it eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition ingonsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets
or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different basis,

All investments under participants' funds except investment in short term deposits have been designated as carried at fair
value through profit or Joss.

Investments classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at their fair values with fair value adjustments and realised
gains and losses recognised in their respective funds. Equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

Available-for-sale

All investments under shareholders’ fund except investment in short term deposils have been classified as availabie-for-
sale (AFS) investments.

AFS investments are investments that are not classified in any of the other categories and are measured at fair value.
AFS investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition
and are subsequenlly carried at fair value, Fair value gains or losses of those investments are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment [osses. Significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments
below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. if any such evidence exist for AFS
investments, the cumuiative losses, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the. current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. If in a subsequent period, the fair value of debt instrurment classified as AFS increase and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss, Impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss for equity instruments are not
reversed through profit or loss. On de-recognition, the cumulative gains or losses previously reported in revaluation
reserves are reclassified to profit and loss account and other comprehensive account.
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6.7

6.8

Held-to-maturity

This represents term deposits of fixed maturity maintained with Islamic commercial banks under profit and loss sharing
basis.

Investment in an associate - equity method

Associates are those entities in which the company has significant influenice, but does not have control, over the financial
and operating policies. These financial statements account for the Company's investment in. associates under the equity
method i.e. recognising Company's share of the fotal recognised gains and losses of associates on the equity accounting
basis. The investment's carrying amount is reduced to nil where the Company's share of losses of the associate, exceeds
its interest in an associate. Having reduced the carrying amount to Nil, further recognition of the associate's losses is
dicontinued, except to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligation,

For investment in Government and Other fixed income securities, fair market value is determined by reference to
quolations obtained from brokers, The fair market value of mutual fund units is determined as per the rales announced by
the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAR). The fair / market value of shares is determined on the basis of
closing quoted market prices available at the Pakistani Stock Exchange.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprising of land and buildings, is held for long term rental yields / capital appreciation. The
investment property of the Company comprises of land which is valued using the Fair Value model i.e. its initial
measurement at cost (expenditure that is directly aftributable to the acquisition of the investment property) and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in profit and loss account and other comprehensive
income.

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valiters to delermine the: fair value of the investment property
at least once every financial year. The gain or loss on disposal of investment property, represented by the difference
between ihe sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as income or expense in profit and loss
account and other comprehensive income,

Date of recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or
markel convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the dafe on which the Company commits to purchase
or sell the investment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment loss. [f any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recagnised for the amount by which the assets
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost
to sell and vajue in use. Impairment losses are charged to profit and loss account and other comprehensive income.

ljarah arrangements
liarah rentals are recognised as an expense on accrual basis as and when the rentals become due.
Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is fair value of the consideration to be paid in
future for goods and / or services received, whether or not bilied to the Company.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resulf of past events, it is
probable that an out flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimaie of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted fo reflect the current
best estimate.
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6.10

6.11

6.12

Takaful liabilities

These Includes outstanding claims and the technical reserves comprising reserve for claims — incurred but not reported
{IBNR), contribution deficiency reserve (CDR) and reserve for unearned contribution,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than those arising out of takaful confracls are recognised at the time when
the Company becomes a party lo the contractual provisions of the instrument. At the time of initial recognition, financial
assets and liabilities are measured at fair values which is the cost of consideration given or received for it. Financial
assets are de-recognised when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expire or is transferred along with
the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabiliies are de-recognised when obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired, Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial asset and liabilities are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Off-setting

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount s reporied in the balance sheet when the Company
has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on the net basis or fo
realise the asset and.settle the liability simultaneously.

Takaful contracts

The takaful contracts are based on the principles of Waqf Wakala Model. Takaful is a programme based on shariah
compliant, approved concept founded on the principles of mutual cooperafion, solidarity and brotherhood.

The obligation of Waqf for Wagf participants’ liabliities is limited to the amount available in the Wagf Fund. In the event
where there is insufficient funds in waqf to meet their current payments less receipts, the deficit is funded by way of an
interest free loan (Qard-e-Hasna) from the Shareholders fund to the participants' funds (Takaful Business Statutory
Funds). The amount of Qard-e-Hasna is refundable to the shareholders' fund.

Technical reserves are stated at a value determined by the appointed actuary through an actuarial valuation carried out
as af each balance shest date, in accordance with Section 50 of the insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Principal actuarial assumptions used by the actuary in computing technical reserves are:
a) the liability in respect of Family Takaful Business and riders of all types is set using the unearmned contribution

method. Due provisicn is made for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and contingencies over the term of
coverage.

b) the fiabllity is calculated by summing up individual mathematicat reserves for the policies. The mathematical reserves
as at the valuation date are calculated individually.

Group takaful

The group family takaful contracts are issued typically on yearly renewable term basis. The Company offers group term
iife and group credit plans to its participants.

Individual takaful contracts

Unit-linked

The Company offers Unit Linked Takaful Plans which provide Shariah compliarit financial protection and investment
vehicle to individual participants. These plans carry cash value. The death benefit design is based.on Constant Sum at
Risk approach l.e. the sum cover is paid up to-the cash value. The plans offer investment choices to the customer to

direct their investment related contributions based on their risk / return objectives. No investment guarantees are offered.
The investment risk is borne by the participants.
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6.14

6.15

6.16

Term life
The Company offers term’ life contracis which provides financial protection to individual participants. The death benefit

design is based on decreasing ferm value i.e. the face value is reduced with term. The plan offers financial protection
choices by selecting the factors for decreasing the face value.

Provision for outstanding claims
A liability for outstandihg claims is_recognised in respect of all claims incurred up to the reporting date and includes

expecied setflement cost, except for accident and health claims / surrenders / partial withdrawals which are recognised as
soon as reliable estimates of the claims amount can be made.

Claims where intimation of the event giving rise to the claim is received or in respect of investment linked business when
the policy ceases 1o participate in the earnings of the participants’ funds are reported as claims in profit and loss account
and other comprehensive income.

Claim recoveries receivable from the retakaful operator are recognised at the same time as the claim which gave rise to
the right of recovery and are measured at the amount expected to be recoveread.

Reserve for claims — Incurred but not reported {IBNR)

The liability for claims - IBNR is determined by the Appointed Actuary and included in the technical reserves, The IBNR is
expressed on the basis of past claims reporting pattern as percentage of earned contribution.

The Company maintains a provision in respect of contribution deficiency for the class of business where the unearned
coniribution reserve is not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after retakaful claims and other supplementary
expenses expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of the unexpired policies in that class of business at
the reporting date. Provision for contribution deficiency reserve is made as per the advice of appointed actuary. The

movement in the contribution deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense / income in profit and loss account and other
comprehensive income,

Commission

Commission expense incurred in cbtaining and recording policies is recognised as an expense in accordance with the
pattern of recognition / receipt of confribution revenue. '

Retakaful

Contracts entered into by the Company with retakafui operator under which the Wagqf cedes takaful risks assumed during
normal course of ils business and according to which the Waqf is compensated for losses on contracts issued by it are
classified as retakaful contracts held.

Retakaful contribution

Retakaful contribution is recorded at the time the retakaful is ceded. Surplus from retakaful operator is recognised in profit
and loss-account and other comprehensive income.

Retakaful expense
Retakaful expense is recognised as a liability in accordance with the pattern of recognition of related confribution.
Retakaful assets and liabilities

Retakaful assets represent balances due from retakaful operator. Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner
consistent with the associated retakaful treaties.

Retakaful liabiliies represent balances due to retakaful companies. Amourts payable are calculated in. a manner
consistent with the associated retakaful treaties.

Retakaful assels are not offset against related takaful liabilities. Income or expenses from retakaful contract are not offset
against expenses or income from related takaful contracts as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000,

Retakaful assets and liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.
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Impairment of retakaful assets
An impairment review of retakaful assets is performed at each reporting date. If there is an objective evidence that the

asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the retakaful asset to its recoverable amount and
recognises that impairment loss in the profit and loss account and other comprehensive income.

Operating segment
An operating segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of other operating segments. The Company accounts for segment reporting

using the classes or sub classes of business (Takaful Business Statutory Funds) as specified under the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000.

The Company has following three primary business segments for reporting purposes:
a) The individual Family Takaful segment provides family takaful coverage to individuals.

b) The Group Family Takaful business segment. provides family takaful coverage to member of business enterprises,
corporate entities and cormmaon interest groups under group family takaful schemes.

¢} The Group Health Takaful segment provides accident coverage and inpatient / outpatient health coverage to
members of business enterprises and corporate entities under group health schemes.

Revenue recognition
Contributions
i) Individual Family

- First year contributions and single contributions are recognised once the relaled policies are issued against receipt of
contribution.

- Renewal contributions are recognised on receipt basis.
- Top up contributions are recognised against receipt of contribution.
ii} Group Family

- Group Family contributions are recognised as and when due. In respect of certain group policies the Company
continues to provide cover even if the contribution is received after the grace period.

iii) Group Health

- Group Health contributions are recognised as and when due. In respect of certain group policies the Company
continues to provide cover even if the contribution is received after the grace period.

- Income from admin services only (AS0) is recognised as a fixed percentage of claims paid based on the contractual
terms with ASO group health customer, The company only manages the administration of the claims and the amount

received in advance is recognised as a liability on the receipt. The coniribution / advance received from ASO
customers is recognised separately as liability and are not included in the Wagf fund.

Income from investments
- Return on bank deposits and income on Islamic investment products is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments and investments held at fair value through profit or loss are
included in profit and loss account and other comprehensive income in the period of sale.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
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6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26.

6.27

Reserve for unearned contribution
The unearned portion of gross contribution net off wakala is set aside as a reserve and included in the fechnical reserves.

Such reserve is calculated as a portion of the gross contribution of each policy, determined according to the ratio of the
unexpired period of the policy and the total period, both measured to the nearest day.

Acquisition cost

These are costs incurred in acquiring and maintaining takaful policies and include without limitation all forms of
remuneration paid to takaful agents.

Commissions and ofher expenses. are recognised as an expense in the earlier of the financial year-in'which they are paid
and financial year in which they become due and payable, except that commission and other expenses which are directly

referable to the acquisition or the renewal of specific contract are recognised not later than the period in which the
contribution to which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Takaful operator's fee / Wakala fee

The shareholders of the Company manage the family takaful operations for the participanis and as such the Company Is
entitied for the takaful operator's fee for the management of takaful operation under Wagf Fund to meet its general and
administrative expenses. The takaful operator's fee is recognised upfront,

Modarib fee

The shareholders of the Company manage the PTF's investments as a Modarib and charge Modarib's share of takaful
investment income and profit on bank balances earned by PTF.

Contribution due but unpaid

These are initially recognised at fair value. Provision for impairment on contribution receivable is established when there
is objective evidence that the Company will not be able {o collect all amount due according to original term of receivables.
Receivables are analysed as per their aging and accordingly provision is maintained on a systematic basis.

Liability adequacy test

An assessment has been made to ensure that the business provisions are adequate. Using current estimates of future
cash flows, appointed actuary has carried out expense projections of the Company to keep a reserve in the light of
estimaled fulure cash flows. The current estimates are adeguate and no separate reserve needs to be set aside.

Claims expense

Provision is maintained in respect of all reported claims against losses incurred up to the reporting date which is
measured at the undiscounted value of expected future payments. Claims are recognised if the takaful event occurs
before the policy ceases to participate in the earnings of the funds,

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves except appropriations required. by the law or determined by actuary or allowed by
Insurance Ordinance, 2000, are recognised in the year in which these are approved.

Qard-e-Hasna

When the parficipants iakaful fund including reserves. are insufficient fo meet the current paymenls less receipis, the
deficit is funded by way of contributions (gard-e-hasna) from the shareholder's fund.



6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income of shareholders' fund at the current rate of taxation after taking
into-account tax credits and rebates available, if any, or 1.25 percent of turnover, which ever is higher.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financlal reporting purposes.

related tax benefit will be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recognised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised {o the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when the asset

is utilised or the Jiability is setiled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacied
at the reporting date.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees (functional currency) using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the fransactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using
the exchange rate at the reporling date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setlement of such
transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account and other comprehensive income.

Staff retirement benefits - defined benefit plan

The Company operates funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who have completed completed a
minimum of five years continuous services.The condition of five years' continuous service shall be replaced by two years'
continuous service when an employee dies (except suicide) or has to leave service on total permanent disablement
grounds. The expense is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out at each year end using the "Projected
unit credit method". Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCH) in the periods in
which they occur. Amounts recorded in the profit and loss SHF account are limited o current and past service costs,
gains or losses on settlements, and net interest Income / (expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit obligation
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through profit and less account and
other comprehensive income.

Staff retirement benefits - defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees, Contributions are made
by both the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary. Contribution made by the
Company is recognised as an expense in profit and loss account and other comprehensive income

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.




6.33 Cashand cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include the following:
- Cash af bank in current and savings accounts;

- Cashand stamps in hand:

- Term deposits with original maturity within three months; and

- Highly liquid shon-

term investments that are convertible to known a@mount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk
of change in value.

7. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards fequires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates, It also requires management to exercise jts judgment in the process of applying the

Company's accounting polices. The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions used in the preparation of the
financial statements are based on historical exparience g

nd other factors, including expectations of futurs evenis that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Note

Estimation of technical reserves and underlying actuarial assumption 6.12, 6,13, 6.15,6.20, 6.25 and 21

- Ciassification and valuation of invesiments 6.5,10,1 1,12,13and 15

- Useful fives of assets and-method of depreciation 6.1,6.2, 6.3, 6.4, 8andg

- Taxation 6.28, 18 and 40

- Impairment of assets 6.2, 6.3, 6.4, 6.5,6.6 and6.23

. = Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with renewal 6.1.3
- Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 6.1.4
Decem ber 31, December 31,
2024 2023
- Note . (Rupees).-......
8. PROPERTY AND. EQUIPMENT
. Operating fixed assets 8.1 286,804,442 307,220,395
Right-of-use assets 8.2 125,558,426 160,844,557
Capital work in progress 8.3 11,585,611 . 6,921,815

433,948,479 474,988,768
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8.1.2 Disposal of operating assets

8.2

8.2.1

. Accumulated  Net book Galn/ {loss) Mode of Particulars of buyers along with

Particulars Cost depreciation value Sales value on disposal disposal relationship
{Rupees)

. As per .
Furniture & Fixture 34,387 5,866 28,521 10,380 (18,132} company policy Various PQFTL Employees
Office Equipment 688,613 460,454 228,150 148,960 (79,198) mmagf’;’i'o" oy Varicus PQFTL Employess
Computer Equipment 1,274,082 1,118,131 155,961 185,001 39,040 wm;’?i’o" oy Various PQFTL Empioyees

1,807,082 1,584,451 412,641 354,350 (58,201)

Allocation of depreciation:

Acquisition expenses
Marketing expenses

Right-of-use assets

Buildings

Opening balance

Additions during the year
Termination during the year
Depreciation expense

Ciosing balance

Allocation of right-of-use assets depreciation:

Acquisition expenses
Marketing expenses

Note

37
38

8.2.1

37
38

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
rmmnmemrmmnmmnna (RUDEES) vmmemsmmssnne

29,227.418 31,341,797
27,396,932 20,548,397
56,624,350 51,880,194
160,844,557 185,397,127
78,880,390 98,043,811
(9,995,587) (14,074,787)
(104,170,934) (116,521,584)
125,558,426 160,844,557
69,430,947 83,928,493
34,739,987 32,593,101
104,170,934 116,521,594

8.2.1.1 The depreciation is charged at the rates ranging from 20 percent to 33.33 percent {2023: 20 percent to 33.33 percent).

8.3

8.1

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Capital work in progress R T 1T P — -
Building improvements
Opening balance 6,921,815 28,442,018
Additions 6,452,869 6,921,815
Transfers (1,789,073) {28,442,018)
Closing bafance 11,585,611 6,821,815
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated amortisation
Particulars As at Addltions As at As at For the As at. Carrying Rate
Japuary 01, December 31, January 01, year December 31, value
{Rupees) o ¥ () e
{rote 38)
S;’t“wgfg 2024 188,934,974 548,332 188,483,306 104,227,146 9,181,753 113,408,898 76,074,407 05-20
[4 i
2023 187,465,974 1,469,000 188,034,974 095,167,641 0,058,505 104,227,146 4,707,828 05-20

Fully amortised assets having cost of Rs. 56.624 million {December 31, 2023: Rs. 56.624 million) are stifl in use.
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10.2

103

104

11.

I\

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Opening balance
Additions and capital improvemerits
Unrealised fair value gain

Closing balance

Shareholders’
fund

Aggregate

Participants’

Note

1041 -

fund Dacamber 31, December 31,
2024 2023
‘(Rupess)
1,124,510,000 1,124,510,000 983,381,249
- - 127,485,046
75,490,000 75,490,000 13,643,705

1,240,000,000 1,200,000,000

1,124,510,000

The company acquired an investment property with the objective of capital appreciation. The fair value of investment property
was determined by external, independent property valuer, Ms. Credit & Commerce Consultants (Pvt} Limited having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being
valued. The latest valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2024 resulting in total fair value of Rs. 1,200 miliion
{December 31, 2023 : Rs. 1,124.510 million).The independent valuer provide the fair value of the Company's investment
property at |east once every financlal year as per Company's policy.

Valuation technique

The valuer adopted marked based approach for the valuation of investment properly and has arranged inquiries and
verifications from various estate agents, brokers and dealers, the location and condition of the property, size, utilisation, and
current trends in prices of real estate including assumptions that ready buyers are available in the cument scenario and
analysed through detailed market surveys, the properties that have recently been sold or purchased or offered / quoted for sale
into given vicinity to determine the best estimates of the fair value. The valuation technique used is included in level 3 in fair
value hierarchy.

The covered area of the freehold land is 1,866.66 sq.yards and office premises is 889 sq.yards.

The cost of freehold land amount to Rs. 600 million (December 31, 2023: Rs. 600 million} and office premises Rs. 470.23
million (December 31, 2023: Rs. 470.23 million) respectively.

INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY SECURITIES

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Impairment/  Carrying Impairment .
Cost Provision value Cost { Provision Carrying value
Note (Rupees) (Rupees)

Shareholders’ fund:
Available for sale
Lisled shares 111 45,644,617  (27,071,624) 24,764,835 45,644,617 - 40,332,372
Non-Banking
Finance Company
Pak Qatar Asset
Management Limited 11.2 15,000,000 - 15,000,000 15,000,000 - 15,000,000
Partic_igants' fund
Fair value fhrough
profit or foss
Lisied shares 11.3 - - - 5,220,528 074 - 7.029,624,398

60,644,617 (27,071,624) 239,764,835 5,275,172,691 - 7.084,956,770




111

11.2

Listed Shares - Available-for-sale (SHF)
December 31, December 31,

2024 2023

Sector wise names of the Investee Number of
comparnies / organisations units / shares
Food and Personal care
Al - Shaheer Corporaticn Limited 3,250,000 3,250,000
Uniiste‘d Shares - Available-for-sale (SHF)
Non-Banking Finance Company

Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company

Limited 1,500,000 1,500,000

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Face Carrying amount
value {Rupees)
10 24,764,836 40,332,372
10 15,000,000 15,000,000

The above investment in unlisted related party is carried at cost as there is no major change in the book value of the shares.
Therefore, the management considers that the impact of fair valuation is not material to the financial statements.

Listed Shares - Fair value through profit or loss (PTF)

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023

Sector wise names of the Investee
companies / organisations

Number of
units / shares

Automohile
Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited - 1,875,000
Engineering
Agha Steel Industries Limited - 17,766,000
Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited - 7,725,000
Amreli Steels Limited - 20,500,000

Food and personal care products

Al Shaheer Corporation Limited - 22,140,500
Unity Foods Limited - 24,028,071
Refinery
Pakistan Refinery Limited, - 100,000
Cement
DG Khan Cement Company Limited - 9,623,087

Technology & Communication
Pakistan Telecommunication
Avanceon Limited - 4,200,000

Oil and Gas exploration
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited - 8,000,060
Pakistan -Petroleum Limited- - 8,000,000

Cables and electrical goods
Pak Elektron Limited “ 55,781,140

Oil and Gas marketing companies
Pakistan State Oil Cempany Limited - -
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited - 8,500,000

December 31, December31,

2024 2023
Face Carrying amount
value (Rupees)
(Rupees)

10 - 400,725,000
10 - 252 810,180
10 - 367,941,750
10 - 472,730,000
10 - 274,763,605
10 - 567,783,318
10 - 2,819,000
10 - 744,825,366
10
10 - 240,828,000
10 - 809,600,000
10 - 920,240,000
10 - 1,259,538,159
10 - -
10 m - 624,920,000

- 7.029,624,398
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15.2 Mutual Funds -~ Fair Value Through Profit or

i

16.

17.

174

B\

Loss (PTF}

ABL [slamic Asset Allocation Fund

AKD islarni¢ Income-Fund

Al Ameen Istamic Aggressive Income Plan |
Alfalah GHP islamic Vdlue Fund

Faysal islamic Asset Allocation Fund

HBL Islamic Asset Aflocation Fund Plan |

investment in related parties

Pak Qatar Asset Allocation Plan | {PQAAP 1A}

Pak Qatar Asset Allocation Plan 11 (PQAAP [1A)
Pak Qatar Asset Allocation Pian 1l (PQAAP {HA)

Pak Qatar Islamic Asset Allocation Fund
(Pa% Qatar Stable Return)

Pak Qiatar Asan Munafa Plan
Pak Qatar Cash Plan

Pak Qatar Daily Dividend Plan
Pak Qatar Ingcome Plan

Pak Qatar Islamic Stock Fund
Pak Qatar Khalis Bachat.Pian
Pak Qatar Monthly Income Plan

786 Smart Fund
(Formerly: Dawood Inceme Fund)

TAKAFUL / RETAKAFUL RECEIVABLES
-Unsecured, considered good.

Due from takaful contract holders
Due from retakaful operators

DEPOSITS, LOANS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accrued invesiment income
Security deposit

Advance to supplier

Advance to employees
Receivable against Banca takaful
Car Harah receivable

Surety against legal expense
Other receivables

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Number of Face value Carrylng amount
units / shares (Rupees) {Rupees)

86,438,370 174,695,425 10 946,447,538 1,920,985,833
2,405,616 2,016,574 100 134,867,038 112,567,766
3,551,567 6,785,795 100 426,883,733 806,729,943
8,279,295 33,959,606 100 1,012,271,342 3,397,954,043
7,441,489 19,368,603 100 747,572,012 1,919,862,453
2,779,766 11,689,970 100 307,620,999 1,320,216,155

106,428,555 24 673,552 100 11,884,285,446 2,577,865,624
136,272,846 17,432,112 100 15,057,100,076 1,862,951,538

68,722,194 - 100 9,805,062,773 -

- 4,450,000 100 - 469,203,995
1,678,717 1,463,907 100 182,356,792 161,675,631

16,991,857 5,929,466 100 1,858,302,081 657,779,665
5,497,697 7,132,964 100 549,139,035 713,296,386

66,712,376 53,687,728 100 7,437,914,724 5,979,046,567
4,481,937 4,483,888 100 978,232,249 659,566,601
2,971,782 2,861,134 100 327,726,317 317,171,883
4,482,755 3,789,063 100 455,126,428 381,490,806

= 1,643,515 - 150,429,122
52,110,908,583  23,398,793,908
Aggregate

Shareholders Participants' December 31, December 31,

CE 2024 2023

fund funds
Note {Rupees}

- 775,434,888 775,434,888  1,034,656,233
- 86751 ,391 66,751,391 75,274,737
- . B42186,279 842,186,279  1,109,930,870
52,517,077 42,343,975 94,861,052 184,133,132
36,400,994 10,049,477 46,450,471 42,895,430
12,298,007 - 12,298,007 10,433,833
17.4 22,053,239 - 22,053,239 11,734,517
20,376,806 17,002,431 37,379,237 25,264,312
9,365,428 - 9,365,428 6,149,688
4,022,000 - 4,022,000 4,022,000
6,757,693 8,767,300 15,524,989 41,751,965
163,791,250 78,163,183 241,954,433 326,384,877

These are secured against retirement benefit obligations of employees. Repayments are made through deduction from salary

paid.
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19.

191

20,

201

20.2

PREPAYMENTS Note

Prepaid rent

Prepaid software / hardware maintenance fee
Prepaid marketing

Other prepayments

CASH AND BANK

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash in hand
Stamps in hand

Cash at bank

Current accounds

Saving accounts 19.1

Aggregate

Participants' December 31 December 31
Shareholders ! !
' fund funds 2024 2023
{Rupees)---

493,610 - 493,610 106,220
5,147,206 - 5,147,206 9,238 665
3,952,637 - 3,952,637 4,468,881

18,155,527 - 18,155,527 6,964,809
27,748,980 - 27,748,980 20,778,675

775,087 - 775,067 478,177
9,581,932 - 9,581,832 6,360,683
4,986,489 157,551,639 162,538,128 364,481,170

304,634,329  3,903,996,256  4,208,630,585 3,660,619,166
319,977,817  4,061,547,895  4,381,525,712 4,031,939,196

Saving accounts carry profit rates of 8% to 21.6% (2023: 10% to 21%) per annum.

Cash for the purposes of the cash flow statement consists of;

Cash and other equivalents
Cash in hand
Stamps in hand

Current and other accounts
Current accounts
Saving accounts

Deposits maturing within 3 months (encashable on demand)

SHARE CAPITAL
December December’
34, 2024 31, 2023
------- {Number of shareg)-------
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
200,000,000 140,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-
UP SHARE CAPITAL
130,712,440 130,712,440 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each,

fully paid in cash

Note

203

December 31,

December 31,

2024 2023
-------------- {Rupees) -r-r—r<mmsaame
775,067 478,177
9,581,932 6,360,683
10,356,999 6,838,860
162,538,128 364,484,170
4,208,630,585 || 3,660,619,166

4,371,168,713
§0,000,000

4,025,100,338
50,000,000

4,431,625,712

4.081,935,196

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
immmemmmemeemmee (RUpEES} e ——

2,000,000,000  1,400,000,000

1,307,124,400

1,307,124,400

20.3 The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. The holders are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitied to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All
shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

A\
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22,

221

December 31, December 31,
_ 2024 2023
DEFERRED TAX B {11111y —
Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of
Surplus on revaluation of available-for-sale-investments 4,810,185 1,167,962
Remeasurement of post retirement benefits obligation 6,684,581 6,955,045
11,494,766 5,113,007
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of
Accelerated depreciation {19,317,887) (20,621,215)
(7,823,121} (12,508,208)
Recognised in Recognised in
J As at Recognlsed in statement of As at Recognised statement of As at December 31,
anuary 1, December 31, in profit and
2023 profit and loss comprehensive 2023 loss comprehensive 2024
income Income.
{Rupess)
Reconcillation of
deferred tax
deductible temporary
difference arlsing in
respect of
Remeasurement of post
retirement banefits
obligation 8,767,978 - 1,187,067 6,955,045 - {270,464) 6,684,581
Surplus / (Deficlt) on
revaluation of available
for sale investments 29,563,310 - {28,405,348) 1,157,962 - 3,652,223 4,810,185
taxable temporary
difference arising in
respect of
Accelerated depreciation  (21,797,722) 1,176,507 - {20,621,215) 1,303,328 . (19,317,887}
13,533,566 1,176,507 (27,218,281)  {12,508,208) 1,303,328 3,381,759 (7,823,121)
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Note  -meemeeeceememeeee (RUp@ES) <vmmecemmmenens. -
TAKAFUL LIABILITIES
Reported outstanding ¢laims (including claims in payment) 221 1,703,808,248 1,370,293,340
incurred but not reported claims 222 169,259,369 168,286,622
Liabilities under individual {akaful contracts 22.3 39,859,189 50,031,565
Liabilities under group takaful contracts 573,495,202 585,897,283
Investment component of unit-iinked and account value policies 55,617,508,773  37.489,105,584
58,104,031,781 39,673,614,394

Reported outstanding claims

Gross of re-takaful
Payable within one year

Payable over a period of time exceeding one year

1,151,459,646
552,448,602

1,098,666,853
271,626,487

1,703,508,248

1,370,293,340




i

22.2

223

23.

24,

Incurred but not reported claims

Gross of re-takaful
Re-takaful recoveries

Net of re-takaful

Liabilities under individual takaful contracts

Gross of re-Takaful
Re-takaful recoveries

Net of re-takaful

UNCLAIMED TAKAFUL BENEFIT

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
------------- (RUpees) —-wm—mmevmeem

254,073,696 224,963,366
(84,814,327)  (56,676,744)

169,259,369 168,286,622
89,585,042 104,962,420
(49,725,853)  (54,930,855)
39,859,189

50,031,565

Circular 11 of 2014 dated May 19, 2014 issied by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has
established requirement for all insurers to disclose age wise break up of unclaimed insurance benefits in accordance with
format prescribed in the annexure to the said circular.

The unclaimed benefits are described in the circular as the amounts which have become payable in accordance with the
terms and conditions of an insurance policy but have not been claimed by the Participants or their beneficiaries. Such
unclaimed amounts may fall into the following categories:

Age-wise break up - 2024:

Total 1-6 7-12 13-24 25 -36 Beyond 36
Amount Months Months Months Months months
(Rupees) -
Unclaimed maturity benefits 5,947,913 377,528 495313 3,050,815 409,412 1,614,845
Claims not encashed 185,214,078 159,015,942 7,582,212 4,754,354 5,469,184 8,352,386
191,161,991 159,393,470 8,077,525 7,805,169 5,878,596 10,007,231
Age-wise break up - 2023
Total 1-6 7-12 13-24 25-36 Beyond 36
Amount Months Months Months Months months
(Rupees)
Unclaimed maturity benefits 1,346,707 133,364 148,605 325,651 285,295 453,792
Claims not encashed 60,783,113 46,112,878 4,383,623 3,472,204 1,307,774 5,506,634
62,129,820 46,246,242 4,532,228 3,797,855 1,593,069 5,960,426

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined benefit plan - gratuity scheme

The Company has approved funded gratuity scheme applicable to permanent employees with effect from January 01,
2012. The actuarial valuation is carried out annually. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31,
2024. Foliowing were the significant assumptions used for the actuartal valuation:

-Discount rate per annum

-Expected rate of increase in the salaries of employees per annum

December 31 December 31

2024 2023
%)

12,25 15.50

12,25 15.50
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24,2

243

24.4

24.5

The scheme  fypically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: salary risk, discount rate risk, mortality risk and
investment risk defined as follow:

- Salary increase risk

There is the risk that the salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than that assumed by the Company. There is a
risk because the benefits payable are based on the final salary, if the final salary is higher than what was estimaled, the
benefits will also be higher.

- Discount rate risk

The discount raie is based on the yield on government bonds. if the market yield of bonds varies, the discount rate would
vary in the same manner and would affect the present value of obligation and fair value of assets.

- Mortality / withdrawal risk

There is the risk that the actual mortality/withdrawal experience is different than that assumed by the Company.
- Investment risk

There is the risk that the assets are underperforming and are not sufficient to meet the liabilities.

December 31 December 31

2024 2023

Note (Rupees)
Statement of financial position reconciliation
Present value of defined benefit obligations 243 139,559,685 109,637,114
Fair value of plan assels 244 (33,540,622) (24,869,139)
Net liability 245 106,019,063 84,767,975
flovement in present value of obligations
Opening balance 109,637,113 95,947,586
Past service cost - -
Clrrent service cost 16,210,062 14,907,073
Interest cost 16,462,527 12,850,238
Benefits paid during the year (6,854,525) (14,650,500)
Actuarial loss 4,104,508 582,716
Closing balance 139,559,685 109,637,113
Movement in fair value of plan assets
Opening balance 24,869,139 23,428,004
Interest income on plan asseis 3,838,866 3,502,162
Contribution to the fund during the year 6,650,000 16,100,000
Benefits paid during the year {6,854,5625) (14,650,500)
Actuarial gain / (I'oss) 5,037,142 (3,510,617
Closing balance 33,540,622 24,869,139
Movement in liability during the year
Opening balance 84,767,975 72,519,493
Charge for the year 24.6.1 28,833,723 24,255,149
Other-comprehensive income 246.2 (932,635) 4,093,333
Contribution ) {6,650,000) (16,100,000)
Closing balance 106,019,063 84,767,975
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24.6

24.6.1

24.6.1.1

24.6.2

24.6.3

2464

Charge for the year Note
Charged to profit and loss account - Shareholder's fund

Current service cost

Interest cost - net 246.1.1
Interest cost - net

interest cost on obligation 243
Interest income on plan assets 24,4

Allocated to:

Shareholder's sub fund
Expenses not atiributable to Paricipants' funds

Charged to statement of comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on obligations
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets

Composition of fair value of plan assets

December 31, 2024

December 31 December 31
2024 2023
{Rupees)
16,210,062 14,907,073
12,623,661 9,348,076
28,833,723 24,255,149
16,462,527 12,850,239
(3,838,866)  (3.502,162)
12,623,661 9,348,076
28,833,723 24,255,149
4,104,508 582,716
(5,037,142) 3,510,617
(932,634) 4,093,333

December 31, 2023

Fair value Percentage Fair value Percentage
(Rupees) (%) {Rupees) (%)
Bank balance 215,597 1 561,749 2
Mutua! funds 33,321,861 89 24,302,767 a8
Accrued profit 3,164 = 4,058 -
33,540,622 100 24,868,574 100

Sensitivity analysis

Significarit actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected rate of safary
increase, mortality rates and withdrawal rates. Sensitivity analyses were carried out on each of these assumptions while

keeping the other assumptions constant. The resulls are given below.

Base
Discount rate Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Salary growth rate Increase by 1%

Decrease by 1%

{Rupees)

139,559,685

129,072,975
151,458,211

151,346,285
128,984,464

Present value Change from
of obligation

base

(%)

(7.51)
8.53

8.45
(7.58)
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3

The estimated contribution 1o the fund for the year ending D

ecember 31, 2024 is Rs. 28.834 million.

Comparison for five years: 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
(Rupees)
As at December 31
Fair value of plan assets 33,540,622 24,869,139 23,428,004 29,127,955 19,801,498
Present value of defined
benefit obligation {139,559,685) (109,637,113) (95,947,586) (86,479,697) (67,517,494)
(Deficit) / Surplus (106,019,063) (84,767.974) (72,519,492) {57,351,742) (47,615,996)
Experience adjustments
Gain / {loss) on plan assets 5,037,142 (3,510,617) {8,693,676) 2,100,713 {1,656,233)
Gain / (loss) on obligations {4,104,508) (582,718) 2,046,395 (4,232,009) 2,154,315
{%)
Gain / (loss) on plan assets . o 0 0 _
( as a percentage of plan asset) 15.02% (14.11%) {37.10%) 7.21% (8.32%)
Galn / (loss) on obligations
( as a percentage of plan {2.94%) (0.53%) 2.13% {4.88%) 3.19%
obligations)
December 31, December i,
Shareholders Participants 2024 2023
fund funds
(Rupees)
TAKAFUL / RE-TAKAFUL PAYABLE
Due to re-takaful operators - 143,681,016 143,681,016 117,046,472
Aggregate
Shareholders’ Participants' December 31, December 31,
fund funds’ 2024 2023
{Rupees)
OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Agent commission £9,936,994 - 69,936,994 64,025,334
Payable for banca-takaful - - - 14,795,361
Accrued expenses 56,732,390 98,836 56,831,226 66,820,958
withholding tax 6,184,275 11,901 6,196,176 5,140,836
Unpaid dividend 7,397,476 - 7,397,476 9,757,811
Advance against claim - admnnlstratlve 30,146,621 . 30,146,621 50,702,892
services only
Computer and Software Maintenance - - - 2,500
Stale cheques 624,920 35,300,130 36,225,050 28,049,838
Charity Payble 6,869,259 3,554 6,872,813 9,531,787
Others 77,845,996 32,939,900 110,785,886 91,053,196
256,037,932 68,354,320 324,392,252 339,880,513

This includes accrual related o last month salary and prov

year.

ision related to bonus and leave encashment for the respective




Aggregate

Shareholders’ Participants’ December 31, December 31,
fund funds 2024 2023
27. LEASE LIABILITIES {Rupees) _

Current portion 68,483,288 - 68,483,288 94,250,081
Non-current portion 65,512,586 - 65,512,586 90,297,120
433,995,874 - 433,995,874 184,547,201

Opening balance 184,547,201 - 184,547,201 223,735,747
increase in lease liability 78,880,390 . 78,880,390 86,043,811
impact of termination (10,912,965) - (10,912,965) (19,615,679)
Finance cost 27,071,624 - 27,071,624 25,697,528
Payments {145,590,376) - {145,590,376) {(141,314,2086)
Closing balance 133,995,874 - 133,995,874 184,547,201

27.1 Finance cost on lease fiabilities for the year ended December 34, 2024 was Rs. 27.074 million (2023: Rs. 25.697 million}.

27.2 The |ease liabilities are discounted using incremental borrowing ranges from 7,.90% to-16.00%.

27.3 December 31, 2024

Present value of Financlal charge Minimum lease

minimum lease  for the future payment

payment
-{Rupees)

Not later then one year 69,677,855 8,361,343 78,039,198
+ Later then one year but not later then five years 64,318,020 7,074,982 71,393,002
: 133,985,875 15,436,325 149,432,200

December 31, 2023
Present value of  Financial charge  Minimum lease

minimum lease for the future payment
payment
{Rupees)
Not later then one year 94,250,081 19,820,234 114,070,315
L ater then ane year but not later then five years 90,297,120 18,059,424 108,356,544
184,547,201 37,879,658 222,426,858

28, - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
28.1 - Contingencies

The company in the year 2018, together with other Life / Health insurance companies, through writ petitions in the Hon'ble Lahore
High Court (LHC) and the Sindh High Court (SHC) challenged the levy of Punjab Sales Tax and Sindh Sales Tax on Life and Heailth
Insurances in Punjab and on Life insurance in Sindh as health insurance in Sindh was granted exemption till June 30, 2023. The
LHC In its hearing had directed that no final order shall be passed in pursuance {o impugned-show cause notices (which were issued
by PRA to some of the Life and Health insurance comipanies) until the next date of hearing. The SHC, in their interim order dated
December 02, 2019, directed that the request of the petitioners seeking exemption in terms of Section 10 of the Sindh Sales Tax Act,
9011, shall be considered by the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) in accordance with the law. Further, the SHC, in their interim order

dated December 08, 2020, impleaded that the Federal Government be also added as one of the respondents to the case.

The SRB through Notification No. SRB-3-4/13/2020 dated June 22, 2020, made the life Insurance taxable w.e.f. July 01, 2020 at the
full rate of 13%. A conditional exemption for the financial year 2018-20 was granted from the levy of ST, subject to the person
providing Life Insurance services commences e- depositing with the SRB, the amount of SST due on such services for the tax
periods from July 01, 2020 onwards.

Further, SRB did not extend the exemption on health insurance which was available till June 30, 2023, herice making it taxable with
effect from July 01, 2023 at'the full rate of 13%. The company with other 7 health insurance / takaful providers challenged the levy of
Sindh Sales Tax on Health Insuranceftakaful in Sindh High Court (SHC).

Further, ihe management of the Company after due consuitation of legal advisor s of the view that since under the Unit Linked
Family Takaful Policy, contribution is received for two separate purpeses, je. “Risk coverage’ and “Investment” -and contributions
thus received are segregated into separate funds, therefore, only the risk based portion of contribution may potentially be subject {o
sales tax. This contention is further strengthened by the underlying provisions of Punjab Sales Tax on Services (Specific Ptovisions)
Rules, 2012 and Sindh Sales Tax.on Services Rules, 2011, These rules clearly state that sales fax shall be calculated on the gross
amount of premium charged on risk covered in the insurance poficy.

X




Shortly after 2024, the SHC dismissed the cases, 0
without considering the merits of the arguments {

ther than stay against SST on heaith insurance merely on technica! grounds and
hat forms the basis of the petition, essentially directing the petitioners to re-

approach SRB regarding Show cause notices issued by the department on the matter of taxability of the life insurance. However, it
has been unanimously decided by the industry, through the platform of Insurarice Association of Pakistan (1AP}, to refer the case o
and file a constitutional petition in the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

In view of the opinion of the legal advisors, and pend

ing the adjudication of the petiions filed, the Company has neither billed its

customers, nor recognized the contingent liability for PST, S5T, which, calculated on the basis. of risk premium and excluding the

investment amount allocated to unit linked policies as pe
Rs. 684,54 million). The management contends that s

" Participants

28.2 Commitments

r the opinion of the legal advisors, aggregated to Rs. 949.44 million (2023

hould the administrative efforts fail, the amount will be charged 1o the

Gommitments under ijarah arrangements amounting to Rs. 144.21 million (2023: Rs. 268.379 million) and the period in which these

payments will becoms due are:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

29. MNET TAKAFUL CONTRIBUTION REVENUE

- Gross contributions

- Regutar contribution individual policies
First year
Second year renewal
Subsequent year renewal

' Single and top-up contributions

_ Group policies without cash values

Total gross contributions

Less: Re-takaful contributions ceded

On individuat life first year business
On.individual life second year business

On individua! life subsequent renewal business
On single contributions individual policies

On group policles

Net contribulions
30. WAKALA FEE

Contribution altocated {o Shareholders' sub-fund
Other wakala fee

31, INVESTMENT INCOME

-.Dividend income
Listed shares
- Available-for-sale
- Fair valué through profit or loss

-Return on debt securities
Debt securities
- Available-for-sale
- Fair value through profit or loss

income from deposits
Total investment income

3&

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
PR | [T 71 )

56,469,075 94,888,977
87,741,161 173,480,509
144,210,236 268,378,486
309,511,412 820,806,895
351,641,559 862,354,931
3,103,466,19 3,827,734,712
21,930,337,828 7,714,370,705
3,122,039,920 3,071,423,059

28,817,016,910 16,296,690,302

(8,032,736) (11,869,203)
(14,233,551) (30,705,798)
(134,859,608) (167,809,575}
{17,923) (52,471)
(263,689,349) _ (239,258.494)
(417,833,165)  (449,816,541)

28,399,183,745 15,846,873,761

721,454,060 834,827,499
631,351,208 572,927,313
1,352,815,348 1,507,754,812
Aggmgate
Shareholders’ Participants’ December 31, December 31,
fund funds 2024 2023
{Rupees)

. - - 4,855,000
- 128,663,100 128,663,100 179,105,500
64,909,407 - 64,909,407 70,161,764
- 343,417,185 343,417,185 384,203,912
152,297,882 98,517,632 ¢ 250,815,521 213,054,187
217,207,289 570,597,925 787,805,213 851,380,383
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33.

34,

35,

NET REALISED FAIR VALUE GAINS ON INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale:

- Listed shares
- Mutual funds
- Debt securities

Fair value through profit or loss:

-Listed shares
-Mutual funds
-Debt securities

Net gain

NET FAIR VALUE GAINS / (LOSSES) ON INVESTMENTS

Fair value through profit or loss
Net unrealised gain / (f0ss)
-Equity securities
Mutual funds
-Debit securities

OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of operating assets
Exchange (loss} / gain
Administrative services income
Reassessment income
Miscellaneous income

TAKAFUL BENEFITS - NET

Gross claims

Glaims under individual policies
by death
by surrenders / withdrawais
by maturities

Total gross individual policy claims

Claims under group policies
by death
by insured event other than death

Total gross group claims

Total gross claims

Retakaful recoveries
On individual life
On group claims

"&Total retakaful
[

Net ciaims

Aggregate
Shareholders' Participants' December 31, December 31,
fund funds 2024 2023
{Rupees)
- - - 18,687,588
72,767,221 - 72,167,221 74,961,285
972,339 - 872,339 (424,435)
73,739,560 - 73,739,560 93,224,438
- 582,636,045 582,636,045 1,051,696,723
- 3,178,280,005 3,178,280,005 1,697,270,090
- (64,096,250) (64,096,250) (211,434,557)
73,739,560  3,696,81 9,800 3,770,559,360 2,723,981,132
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Note ~  =---ssw-semmmrresemes {Rupees)--rn--sr-ssmrrm=--
- 1,799,178,226
5,436,550,972 1,811,434,490
23,115,843 229 861,552
5,459,666,815 3,840,474,268
8.1.2 - 34,313
{18,725) 53,016
12,081,180 15,713,778
- 5,540,890
4,000,355 14,123,321
16,062,810 32,465,318
92,291,744 153,835,438
13,713,583,515 7,331 485,471
1,286,693,016 816,162,237
15,092,568,275 8,301,483,147
524,727,190 405,081,295
2,156,163,646 2,157,850,918
2,680,890,836 2,652.932,21 3
17,773,459,111 10,054,415,360
{391 29,630) (83,708,452)
{243,893,754) {218,189,530)
(283,023,444) (301 ,897,982)
17,490,435,667 10,652,517,378




3541 Agingand movement of outstanding claims

The claims development table for each class of business and an overall aging and movement of outstanding claims. is

(%

presented below:

individual Family

Accldent Year 2021 2022 2023 2024
o (RUPEES )msmmmmmmommmemensr s -
Estimate of ultimate claims costs:
At end of accident year 164,832,612 156,747,064 165,454,383 103,662,588
One year later 156,761,116 132,960,585 107,593,223 -
Two years later 160,005,853 148,343,506 - -
Three years later 151,845,042 - - -
Current estimate af cumulative claims 214 512,720 712,214,824 165,454,393 123,662,585_1
ess: cumulative payments to date 166,828,078 168,134,071 58,240,890 28,510,5(ﬂ
47 684,642 44,080,753 107,213,503 95 152,087 _
Liability recognised in he statement of financial positiorl 135,793,466
Group Family |
Accident year 2021 2022 . 2023 2024
- (Rupees)-—.--»——--—-—«--——-———-w—---—-—--w-—-»----
Estimate of ultimate claims costs:
At end of accident year 295,075,376 315,605,438 276,802,254 484,344,454
One year later _?79.425,224 281,028,737 -236,036,038 -
Two years Iater 285,315,699 285,368,074 - -
Three years later 286,031,459 - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 370,696,339 449,845,147 462,838,292 4‘34,%,75?1
Less; cumulative payments to date 470,696,339 438,064,081 287,005,646 327,197,572
\ - 11,781,066 176,832,646 457,146,882 _
Liability recognised in the statement of ﬁnanpial position 124,924,478
Group Health
Accident year 2021 2022 2023 2024
_ - (Rupees) -
Estimate of ullimate claims costs:
At end of accident year 916,121,787  1,249,123,827 1,018,207624 2,134,643,807

One year later 921,611,842 1,221,476,134 1,131,817,021 - -
Two years later 910,806,217 1,219,119,519 - -
Three years later 910,554,003 - = -

current Estimate of -cumuiative claims

1,208,132,739

1,942,343,910

2 150,024,545

7134,643,807 |
42|

Less: cumuiative payments to date 1,209,132,738 1,042,343,910 4,821,353,444 1,864,233,6
- - 328,671,101 270,410,165
44 987,073

Liability recognised in the statement of financiai position
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37.

Note
TAKAFUL OPERATOR FEE

Modarib fee income
Other wakala income

ACQUISITION EXPENSES / COMMISSION EXPENSE

Remuneration to takaful intermediaries on individual poticies:

Commission to agent on first year contribulions

Commission ta agent on second year-contributi’ons

Commission to agent on subsequent renewal cantributions
Commission to agent on top- up contribution and single contribution
Cornmission to iakaful intermediaries on group policies

Other acquisition expenses:

Other benefits 1o takaful intermediaries
Sailaries, allowances and other benefits
Contribution to defined contribution plan
Entertainment ’

Training / conference

- Dffice supplies and amenities

Vehiclg running

Car ijarah

Traveling

Utilities

Rental

Postages

Telephone

Repairs and maintenance

Printing and stationary

Computer

Sales promolion

Depreciation { Operating assets ) : 81.2
Depreciation (Right-of-use assets) 8.2.1
Wiscellaneous other expenses '

Group Takaful '

Policy stamps

December 31,

December 31,

2024 2023
{Rupees) e
68,309,964 54,256,987
997,933,609 587 557.256
1,066,243,573 641,814,243
98,173,730 228,973,736
55,531,501 123,088,314
104,548,274 103,865,870
231,936,398 51,656,044
108,791,369 109,726,445
598,981,272 628,211,309
[ 400,019,041 87 567,383 |

275,762,184 302,147,752
14,855,577 10,350,546
1,570,999 919,272
5,492,947 4,425,994
18,049,571 18,796,133
39,583,590 40,373,321
3,620,680 6,487,869
23,205,069 17,042,417
47,497,922, 41,686,515
2,892,208 398,026
7,001,081 7,327,677
6,891,476 10,923,343
16,195,982 14,748,951
11,379,961 15,000,147
4,555,793 10,162,875
43,501,598 38,891,774
29,227,418 31,341,797
9,430,947 83,028,493
128,711 676,153
82,127,797 40,385,987
15,199,561 10,836,460
845,210,112 803,409,785

1,414,191,384

1,431.621.094
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39.

394

39.1.1
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MARKETING AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Salaries, ailowances and other benefits
Chatge for defined benefit plan
Contribution to defined contribution plan
\ehicle running

Car ljarah rentals

Medical

Travelling

Utilities

Rental

Communication

Repairs and maintenance

Printing and stationary

Software maintenance
Advertisement

Depreciation (Operating assets)
Depreciation {Right-of-use assets)
Amortisation

Shariah advisors® fees

Actuary's fees

Legal and professional
Consultancy

Supervision fees

Subscription fees

Bank and brokerage
Entertainment

Training

Staff welfare

Group Takaful

General takaful

Miscelianeous

OTHER EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Employer's contribution to provident fund
Vehicles running '
Traveling

Cormmunication

Auditors' remuneration

Loss on sale of operating assets
Consultancy '

Miscellaneous expenses

These expenses are not attribuitable to Participants' fund
Auditors’ remuneration

Audit and related services

Audit fee
Fee for review, other certifications and advisory services
Qut of pocket '

Sales tax

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023

Note e {Rupees}------="=""""
330,026,805 204,584,147

28,833,723 24 255,148

16,215,218 15,608,636

B 34,854,580 35,343,082
7,325,202 4881.238

- 94,084

12,125,146 8,138,282

42,128,955 31,348,134

. 621,400

20,816,169 31,482,065

14,111,075 6,519,140

8,935,637 13,846,280

75,127,657 69,001,266

16,066,029 14,579,414

8.1.2 27,396,932 20,548,397
8.2.1 34,739,987 32,593,101
9,181,753 9,050,505

3,860,064 3,844,943

1,398,945 1,895,076

10,576,639 12,555,092

135,904,573 79,272,521

16,377,024 15,978,291

12,826,066 9,308,556

2,909,148 1,533,566

4,793,311 4.4053,556

2,141,386 2,084,094

40,711,567 11,039,706

26,063,931 25,861,824

1,489,688 1,691,786

L 392,799 680,706
904,330,005 790,553,037

3,655,457 . 2,471,194

188,491 139,841

‘513,761 435,560

158,693 154,530

38,634 " 17,363

39.1.1 2,608,200 4,091,974

8.1.2 58,291 = S
6,797,692 41,422,261

- - 598,157

14,019,220 17,230,880

1,400,000 1,000,000

700,000 625,000

315,000 219,420

193,200 147 554

2 608,200

1,991,974
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40.2

40.3

41.

42

TAXATION

Current year
Prior year

Deferred

The Company has filed returns upto and including tax year 2024 w

120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Security and Exchange Commission

unadjusted advance tax after one year.

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit for the year 2024 is given

Profit before taxation
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2023: 29%)

Tax effect of:

- expenses not deductible for fax purposes
- income not subject o tax

- others

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Basic and diluted

Profit after tax (Rupees)
Weighted average ordinary shares as at year end (Nurmber)

EPS (Rupees)

of Pakistan (SECP) throug
permissible for the Shareholders' Fund of a life insurer to purchase the full amount
refundable tax recorded in the books of the Statutory Fund(s}, against consideration in
or government securities. Furthermore, the Shareholders' Fund is now required 1o man

1o the Statutory Fund(s) that are adjustable within a period of one year. Failing to do so may result in the lapse of the

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
{_Rupees}

95,948,843 37,408,657
2,089,685 {507,603)

98,038,528 36,991,064
(1 ,303,328) {1,176,507)

96,735,200 35,814,547

h the S.R.O. 312())/2025 d:
of adjusta

hich are deemed ‘o have been assessed under Section

ated March 03, 2025, made
ble, advance, withholding, or
the form of cash, cash equivalents,
datorily purchase such taxes related

below.
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
| {51 111} Bt —
366,456,348 162,112,650
106,272,341 55,712,668
16,233,248 3,008,226
{21,348,913) (18,780,089)
(4,421,476) (4,126,25B)
96,735,200 25,814,547
December 31,  December 31,
Note 2024 2023
269,721,148 156,208,103
20 130,712,440 130,712,440
2.08 1.20

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO), DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive Officer

(CEO), Directors, and Executives of the Company are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
CEO Executives CEO Executives
{Rupees)
Managerial remuneration 6,455,383 82,967,765 6,008,923 73,000,733
House rent 2,904,923 37,335,495 2,704,015 32,850,332
Utilities 571,056 7,339,333 531,555 6,457,645
Others 3,004,385 30,466,353 3,782,540 30,280,478
” 12,935,757 158,108,946 13,027,033 142,599,188
(Nuimber)
Persons - 1 39 1 36
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The Company also provides Company maintained cars to certain executives.

Certain Directors have been reimbursed with the boarding and lodging costs in relation fo attending board meetings of the
company as per the company's policy which amounted 1o Rs. 1.37 million (2023: Rs. 0.668 million).

Executive mean employees other than Chief Executive and Directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a
financial year.

PROVIDENT FUND

The. Company operates approved contributory provident fund (the Fund) for its permanent employees. The following
information is based on unaudited financial statements of the fund as at December 31, 2024 {2023: audited).

{Un-audited) {Audited)
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Size of the fund - net assets (Rupees) 8,035,725 7,248,802
Cost of the investments made (Rupees) 5,584,775 4,800,284
Percentage of the investments made (%) 69 66
Fair value of the investments made (Rupees) 5,584,775 4,800,294
The break up of fair value of the investments in provident fund is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023

{Rupees) (%) {Rupees) (%)

Bank balances 5,584,775 100 4,800,294 100

The investments have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
rules formulated for this purpose.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise of related group companies, associates, directors, staff retirement funds and key management

_ personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transaclions with various related parties. Details of
" transactions and balances with related parties, except as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:

Name of Related Party Relationship Shareholding
' (%)
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Pak-Qatar General Takaful Ltd Common Directorship Nil Nil
Pak-Qatar Asset Management Company Lid Common Directorship 5% 5%
Pak-Qatar Family Takafui Ltd - Employees’ Provident Fund Provident Fund Nil Nil
FWU Pakistan Associate Company Nil Nil
December 31, December 31,
Relationship Nature of transaction 2024 2023
e ~{RUpEes)--—r—-wermnmmmems
Entities with common Met shared expenses received 147,010,330 108,928,479
directorship Claims received against general takaful 690,850 74,000
Claims paid against group takaful 4,621,508 -
Contribution paid against general takaful 1,159,327 350,640
Contribution received against group takaful 1,337,786 1,811,581
Investment advisory fee 139,017,327 82,543,678
Associated company Barca takaful acquisition, entrance and administration 82,701,437 112,371,674
fee
Employees provident fund.  Contribution paid 32,128,179 29,176,021
Balances with related parties are as follows:
Entities with common investment advisory fee payable 16,200,053 7,383,028
directorship
Associated company Administrative charges payable - 14,660,361
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

REVENUE ACCOUNT
December 31, 2024
Participants’ funds Aggregate
{ndividual Individual
Eamily Family l"g:';:;' al Group Famlly  Group Heaith Decezmngir 3,
{Dlrect) {Banca) ¥
Paniclpant Investment Fund (PIF o {Rupees}
Income
Allocated contribution 23,424,537,770 1,131,444.739 24,555,982,509 - - 24,555,982,508
Net investment income 5,787,583,925 3,837,405,418 0,624,999,344 - - 9,624,999,344
Total net Income 29,212,131,596 4,968,850,158 134,180,981,853 - - 34,180,951,853
Less: Claims and expenses
Susrender / partial withdrawal 14,360,446,223 3,639,831,308 15,000,276,531 - - 15,000,276,531
Takaful operators’ fee 845,872,118 151,961,481 997,933,609 - - 897,933,609
Other charges 2,263,073 52,104,452 54,367,526 - - 54,367,526
Total clalms and expendliurs 12,208,680,413 3,843,897,281 16,052,577,885 - - 16,052,577,665
Excess of Incom over claitn and 17003454282 1124952907  18,128,404,189 . - 18,128,404,189
expenditure
Add: Technical reserves at.
beginning of he year 24,466,0268,582 13,023,077,002 37,489,105,584 - - 37,489,1056,584
i-he;igfm““’a‘ reserves at end of 41,469,470,864 || 14,148,029,909 || 55,617,509,773 . .|| sse17,509,773
Movement in technical reserves (17,003,451,282) (1,124.952,907} (18,1 28,404,189} - - (18,128,404,1 88)
Surplus / (deficit) - - - - - -
Movement in technlcal reserves 47,003,451,282 1,124,062,907 18,128,404,189 - - 18,128,404,189
‘?:;:““ of PIF at beglnning of the 24466,028,582  13,023077,002  37:489,105,584 - . 37489,105,584
Balance of PIF at end of the year (a) 41,469,479,864 44,148,029,909 55,617,508,773 . - 55,617,608,773
Particlpants’ Takaful Fund (PTE}
Income
Contribtition net of refakaful 249,334,206 14,052,408 263,386,614 436,204,792 2,422,055,779 3,421,737,186
Net investment Income 51,068,803 7,590,515 58,659,418 8,565,033 1,085,513 68,309,864
Other income - - - - - -
Total net income 300,403,110 24,642,923 322,046,032 444,959,824 2!423,141,292 3,190,047,143
Less: Clalms and expendltures
Claim net of retakaful recoveries 45,467,010 7,695,045 53,162,055 280,833,436 || 2,1 66,163,646 2,490,159,138
Takaful operators’ fee 135,472,897 7,114,800 142,587,697 236,204,100 253,558,501 531,351,298
QOther charges 13,667,581 7,757,306 21,424,898 3,130,587 3,051,840 27,607,326
Total clalms and expeanditure 194,607,498 22,567,151 247,174,680 519,168,123 2,412,?74,987 3,148,117,769
Excess of income over clalms '
and expenditures 105,795,612 (824,228) 104,871,382 (74,308,289) 10,366,305 40,929,380
Add: Technical reserves at
beginning of the year 60,911,579 4,700,973 65,612,552 217,316,460 531,286,437 814,215,469
;f:;e :f"“"“’a' reserves at end of 50,294,083 4,685,527 54,979,610 || 179,069312 || 547,664,834 782,613,753
Movement in technical reserves 10,617,496 45,448 10,632,942 37,347,168 (16,378,394} 31,601,716
Surplus / (deflcit) before
distEtbutlrEn ) 116,413,108 (908,782) 415,504,324 (36,961,131) (6.012.089) 72,534,106
Distribution of surplus {64,091,013) B {64,091,013) - - (64,091,013}
Surplus / {deficlt) after ;
distribution 52,322,095 (908,782) 51,413,311 (36,961,131) (6,012,089) 8,440,093
Movement in technical reserves {10,647,496) {15,446) (10,632,942) (37,347 168) 16,378,354 {31,601,716)
Transfers from/(to)
Qard-e-Hasna (refurned toy
contributed from
shareholders' sub fund - - - . . .
Net transfer from shareholders' sub . . .
fund " " "
tBha;zr;c; of PTF at beginning of 536,377,747 275,569,867 911,347,614 303,311,766 556,536,920 4,774,796,300
Balance of PTF atend of the year  {b) 678,082,346 274,645,638 952,727,983 229,003,468 566,903,225 1,748,634,877
Subtotal (a+b) 42,147,562,210 14,422,675,547 56,570,237,756 229,003,468 566,903,225 57,366,144,450
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shareholders' Sub Fund

Incomsa
Takaful operator's fee
Mudarib fee from PTF
Total income

Less: Expenditures
Net commission expenses
Other acquisilion expenses
Management expenses
Total expenditure

Excess  (deflclt) of Income over
expenditure

Add: Technical reserves at peginning
of-the year

Less: Technical reserves at end of
the year

Surplus / (deficit) for the year

{Surplus) / deficit transferred to
shareholders' fund

Transfer from / (to) shareholders'
fund
Contribution received from
shareholders' fund
Qard-e-Hasna contributed to PTF
Net transfer from { (to}
shareholders' fund

Balance of shareholders’ sub
fund at beqinning of tha year

Batance of fund at end of the year {c)

Balance of Participants’ funds at
end of the year

Represented by: )
Participants’ investment Fund
Technical reserves for PIF

Participants’ Takaful Fund.
Technical reserves for PTF
Qard-e-Hasna contributions
Accumulated surpius / {deficity - PTF

Shareholders’ sub fund
Technical reserves for sharehoiders'
sub fund
Accumulaled surplus - shareholders:
sub fund

Baiance of funds at the end of the year

Participants’ Funds -Aggregate
Individual Individual D B
Famtly Family In;t;\:‘cll;ai Group Family  Group Health ecezrgzz-r 3
{Direct] {Banca) )
: Caammen {Rupees)
1,538,889,195 323,006,162 1,861,985,356 235,204,100 263,559,501 2,350,748,957
54,088,803 7,590,515 58,659,418 $,565,033 1,085,513 68,309,964
1,585,958,098 330,686,877 1,520,644,774 243,769,133 254,645,014 2,419,058,921
352,650,508 137,639,395 490,189,903 49,239,257 59,552,112 598,084,272
£50,341,592 869,901 651,211,492 72,696,635 109,710,421 833,618,548
549,596,534 457,934,016 707,530,550 60,522,475 144,940,168 912,993,193
1,552,488,633 265,443,312 1,848,831,945 182,458,367 314,202,700 2,345,593,013
37,469,465 34,243,365 71,712,829 61,310,766 {59,557,686) 73,465,908
37,469,465 34,243,365 71,712,828 51,310,786 {59,557,686)- 73,465,508
(37,465,465) (34,243,365) (71,712,829) {61,310,765)’ 59,657,686 (73,486,808}
{ath+c) 42,147,562,210 14,422,675,547 56,570,237,756 229,003,468 566,903,225 57,366,144,450
41,469,479,864 14,148,029,908 55,617,509,773 - - §5,617,509,773
50,294,083 4,685,527 54,979,610 179,969,312 547,664,831 782,643,753
- - . - 260,000,000 260,000,000
627,788,263 269,360,111 897,748,373 49,034,156 (240,764,606} 706,020,923
678,082,346 -274,645_,638 952,727,983 229,003,468 566,903,225 1,748,634,677
42,147,562,210 14,422,675,547 56,570,237,756 229,003,468 568,903,225  57,366,1 44,450




45.1 REVENUE ACCOUNT

Participant Investment Fund (PIF}

Income
Abocaled contributien
Net investment income
Total net Income

Less: Claims and expenses
Surrender / partial withdrawal
Takatul operators' fee
Other charges
Total claims and expenditure

Excess of income over claim and
expenditure

Add: Technical reserves at
peginning of the yeat

Less: Technical reserves at end of
the year

Mavement in technical reserves

Surplus { (deficit)

Movement in technical reserves

Balance of PIF at beginning of the year

Balance of PIF at end of the year (a)

Participants' Takaful Fund {PTF}

income
Contribution net of retakatul
Net investment income
Other income
Total net income

Less: GClaims and expenditures
Claim net of retakaful recoveries
Takaful operafors' fee
Other charges

Total claims and expendtture

Excess of income over clalms and
expenditures

Add: Technical reserves at
beginning of the year
Less: Technical reserves atend of the year

Movement in technical reserves

Surplus / (deficit) before distribution

Distribution of surplus
Surplus J (deficit) after distribution

Movement In technical reserves
Transfers fromi(to)

Qard-e-Hasna (returned to)f contributed

from shareholders: sub fund

Net transfet from shareholders' sub fund

Balance of PTF at beginning of the
year

Balance of PTF at end of the year {b}

Subtotal

December 31, 2023

{a+h)

Participants' funds Aggregate
Individual Individual _ Dacember 31
Family Family indlvidual Family ~ Group-Family ~ Group Health 2023 '
{Diract) {Banca)
{thuc:}
10,364,483,531 1,510,407,962 11.874.891,49‘3 - - 11,874,881,493
3,715,386,226 3,228,246,412 B,043,642,638 - - £,043,642,638
14,078,879,757 4,738,654,374 18,818,534,131 - - 18,818,534,131
5,515,422 488 2,632,225,212 B,147,647,708 - - 8,147,647,708
455,655,893 131,901,363 587,557,256 - - 587,557,266
3,188,410 42,037,748 45,236,158 - - 45,236,158
5,074,276,799 2,806,164,323 B,760,441,122 - - B,780,441,122
8,105,602,958 1,932,490,051  10,038,093,008 - - 10,038,093,009
16,264,B17,467 11,486,395,108 27,451012,575 - - '27,451,012,575
24,370,220,426 13,148,885,159 37,480,105,584 - - 37,488,105,684
{B.405,602,856)  (1,832,480,061) {10,048,083,008) - - {10,038,003,000)
8 405,602,858 1,932,480,051 10,038,083,008 - - 10,038,093,008
18,264,617 467 11,186,385,108 27,451,012,675 - - 27,451,012,575
24,370,220,425 13,118,885,159 37,489,106,584 - - 37,489,105,584
280,050,001 24,941 165 304,891,166 439,604,918 2,392,556,646 3,137,154,731
23,220,848 12,874,605 16,095,453 11,893,889 6,187,673 54,257,016
39,696,618 43,118,496 82,815,118 - - 82,815,115
342,967,468 50,934,266 423,801,734 451,598,808 2,358,726,319 3,274,226,861
£2,658,040 17,566,947 70,128,887 276,881,765 2,157,850,918 2,604,868,670
157,757 487 5,240,826 162,998,483 451,814,022 358,114,800 672,927,305
9,621,293 10,515,132 20,136,427 B,242,884 5,436,116 34,815,427
219,836,822 ' 33,325,075 253,261,887 436,048,671 2,522,401,834 3,212,812,402
123,030,646 47,609,191 170,639,837 14,650,137 (123.675,515) 61,614,459
56,038,801 3,717,650 $0,658,451 480,428,257 539,091,557 700,076,265
60,812,507 4*700.035 65,612,552 217,316,480 531,286,437 844,215,468
(3,073,708} (982,395) {4,058,101) (27,868,223) 8,705,120 {24,139.204)
118,056,940 46,626,786 166,883,736 (13,238.0868) (1 14,870,395) 47,475,256
(55,565,369) (44,287 583) (99,852,952) - - (99,852,952}
63,481,571 2,339,213 65,830,784 (13,238,086} (114.970.395} (62,377,697}
3,973,706 662,395 4,956,101 27 888,223 (8,705,120) 24,139,204
- . - - 85,000,000 85,000,000
- - - - 85,000,000 85,000,000
548,610,996 282,548,731 841,160,727 288,661,629 595,212,464 1,725,034,821
826,076,273 285,871,339 011,947,612 303,311,766 558,536,949 1,771.796,328 2E
24'.996,296,698 13,404,756,488 38,401 053,186 303,311,766 556,536,049 30,260,801,912
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Shareholders' Sub Fund

Income
Takaful operator’s fee
Mudarib fee from PTF

Total incorme

Less: Expenditures
Net commission expenses
Other acquisition expenses
Management expenses
Tota! expenditure

Excess f (deficit) of income over
expenditure

Add: Technical reserves at beginning

of the year

Less: Technical reserves at end of the year

Surplus / (deficlt) for the year

(Surplus) / deficit transferred to
shareholders’ fund

Transfer from [{to) shareholders' fund
Contribution received from
sharehoiders' fund
Qard-e-Hasna coniributed to PTF
Net transfer from / (to)
shareholders® fund

Balance of shareholders’ sub fund
at beginning of the year

Balance of fund at end of the year (€}

Balance of Participants’ funds at
end of the year

Represented by:
Participants® Investment Fund
Technical reserves for PIF

Participants’ Takaful Fund
“Technical reserves for PTF
Qard-e-Hasna contributions
Accumulated surplus / {deficit) - PTF

Shareholders' sub fund
Technical reserves for shareholders'
sub fund
Accumulated surplus.- shareholders'
sub fund

Balance of funds at the end of the year

(a+b+c)

Participants’ Funds Angregate
Individual individual
Family Family Individual Family ~ Group Family ~ Group Health Decegggr Gt
{Direct) {Banca)
(Rupees)
1,138,447 279 446,935,967 1,585,383,246 151,814,022 358,114,600 2,085,312,068
23,220,849 12,874,606 36,085,455 14,093,888 6,167,643 54,256,987
1,161,668,128 458,810,573 1,621,476,701 163,807 811 364,282,443 2,1408,568,055
277,199,662 241,286,201 518,484,863 30,356,084 79,370,361 628,211,308
644,204,713 0,014,624 653,219,337 65,392,141 £9,782,803 B1B,404,281
467,766,766 145,744,335 813,511,101 53,511,625 128,602,453 795,715,179
1,389,171,141 396,044,160 1,785,215,301 148,259,850 307,855,617 2,242.330,788
£227,503,013) 63,766,413 (163,736,600) 14,548,081 56,426,626 (92,764,713}
(227,503,013) 63,766,413 {183,736,600) 14,648,061 56,426,826 (92,761,713}
227,503,093 (83,766,413} 163,736,600 (14,548,061} (56,426,826) 92,761,713
24,996,296,698 13,404,755,498 38,401,053,186 303,311,766 556,536,048 38,260,801,912
24,370,220,425 13,118,885,159 37,488,1 05,584 - - 37,4849, %05,584
60,912,507 4,700,045 65,612,662 217,316,480 531,286,437 814,215,468
- - - - 260,000,000 260,000,000
565,163,766 281,171,294 846,335,060 85,895,286 (234,749,488} 607,580,858
626,076,273 285,874,339 911,947,612 303,311,766 556,536,949 1,771,796,328
24,006,296,688 13,404,756,498- 38.401,053,196 303,311,768 556,536,948 38,260,901,812
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Intome

Gross Contributions
- Firsf year individual regular confributions
- Individual renewal confributions
- Individual single & top-up contributions
- Group contributions
Total gross contributions
Retakaful contributions
- Individual policies
- Group policies
Total retakaful contributions

Net contribution revenues

Surplus from retakaful operators
Net investment income

Total net income

Takafu! benefits and expenditures

Takaful benefits, including bonuses, net of retakaful
Management expenses less recoveries

Total takaful benefits and expenditures

Excess of income over takaful benefits and
expenditures

Add: Participants liabilities at beginning of year
Less: Participants liabilities at end of year

Surplus reserve for the year [ Participant Takaful
Fund (PTF}1

SEGMENT REPORTING

income

Gross Contributions
- First year individual regular contributions
- Individual renewal contributions
~ Individual single & top-up centributions
- Group contributions
Total gross contributions
Retakaful contributions
- Individual policies
- Group policies
Total retakaful confributions

Net contribution revenues

Surplus from retakaful operators
Net investment income

Total net income.

Takaful benefits. and expenditures
Takaful benefits, including bonuses, net of retakafut
Management expenses less recoveries

Total takaful benefits and expenditures

Excess of income over takaful benefits and
expenditures

Add: Participants jiabilities at beginning of year
Less: Participants fiabilities at end of year

Surplus reserve for the year [ Participant Takaful
Fund (PTF} ]

December 31, 2024

Participants' funds Aggregate

Individual Group Group December 31,

Family Family Health 2024
. {Rupees)

309,511,412 - - 309,511,412

3,455,127,750 - - 3,465,127,750
21,930,337,828 - - 21,930,337,628
- 699,984,141 2,422 065,779  3,122,039,920
25,694,976,980 699,984,141 2,422 055,779 128,817,016,910

(154,143,816) - - (154,143,816)

- (263,689,349} - {(263,689,349)
(154,143,816} (263,689,349) - (417,833,165)
25,540,833,174 436,294,792 2,422,055,779 28,399,183,745
9,683,658,762 8,565,033 1,086,513  9,693,309,308
35,224,491,936 444,859,824  2,423,141,292  38,092,493,053
15,117,529,599 280,833,436 2,156,163,646 17,554,526,680
1,937,777,779 238,334,687 256,611,341 2,432,723,807
17,055,307,378 519,168,123 2,412,774,987 19,987,250,487
18,169,184,558  (74,308,298) 10,366,305 18,105,242,565
37,554,718136 | 217,316,480 531,286,437 | 38,303,321,053
55,672,489 383 | 179,969,312 547,664,831 | 56,400,123,526
51,413,311 (36,961,130) {6,012,089) 8,440,093
Decemeber 31, 2023
Participants’ funds Aggregate
Individual Group Group December 31,
Family Family Heaith 2023
{Rupees)

820,808,895 - - 820,806,895
4,690,089,643 - - 4,690,089,643
7.714,370,705 - _ - 7,714,370,705

- 678,864,413 2,392.558,646  '3,071,423,059
13,225267,243 678,864,413 2,392,558,646 16,296,690,302
(210,557,047} - - (210,557,047)
- {2398,259,494) - (239,259 494}
(210,557,047} (239,255,494} - (449,816,541)
13,014,710,196 430,604,919 2,392,558,646 15,848,873,761
82,815,085 - - 82,815,085
6,979,738,081 11,993,889 6,167,673  6,997,800.653
20,077,263,372 451,508,808 2,398,726,319 22,927,588,499
8,317,627,647 276,891,765 2,157,850,918 10,752,370,330
1,650,755,831 160,056,906 364.550.916  2,175,363,653
9,868,383.478 436,948,671 2,522,401,834 12,927,733,083
10,108,879,894 14,650,137  (123,675515) 5,999,854,516
27,511,669,026.| 189,428,257 539,891,557 | 28,241,088,840
37,554,718,136 | * 217,316,480 531,286,437 | 38,303,321,053
65,830,784  (13,238,086) (114,970,395) (62,377,697)




453 SEGMENTAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2024

- Participants' funds Aggregate
r ! Indivi G )
starsholdors Wl il S Dacomber 1, 2026
(Rupees) :
- ASSETS
Property and equipment 308,390,053 - - - 308,390,053
s Intangible assets 76,074,407 - - - 76,074,407
Right-of-use-Asset 125,558,426 - - - 125,558,426
Investments 1,405,326,224 52,1 67,873,922 181,038,155 - 53,754,238,300
- Investment in Associate « - - - -
investment property - 4,200,000,000 - - 1,200,000,000
Advance against investment property 3,775,000 318,149,000 - - 321,924,000
. Takaful / Re-takaful receivables - 63,210,772 143,915,518 634,959,988 842,186,279
- Deposits, loans and other receivables 163,790,994 66,226,859 544,434 11,392,146 241,954,433
Taxation - payments less provision - 915,268,073 17,787,412 8,461,074 941,516,559
Prepayments 27,748,980 - - - 27,748,980
- Cash and bank 319,977,817  3,933,211,8%7 72,246,849 56,089,219 4,381,525,712
Total assets 2,430,641,902 58,664,040,453 415,532,368 710,902,427 62,221,117,149
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
n Shareholders' equity
Share capital 1,307,124,400 - - - 1,307,124,400
Unappropriated profit - net 542,858,966 - - - 542,858,966
. Total equity 1,849,983,366 - - - 1,849,983,366
Deferred tax liability 7,823,121 - - - 7,823,121
- Wagqf / Participant Takaful Fund (PTF}
Cede money - - 500,000 - 500,000
Accumulated surplus / (Deficit) - 897,748,373 49,034,156 {240,761,608) 706,020,923
o Total PTFs Equity - 897,748,373 49,534,156 (240,761,606) 706,520,923
Qard-e-Hasna - - - 260,000,000 260,000,000
Total Participants' equity . 897,748,373 49,534,156 19,238,394 966,520,923
Takaful liabilities - 57,206,486,080 | 304,893,790 592,651,911 58,104,031,781
Retirement benefits obligations 106,019,063 - - - 106,019,063
- Contributions received in advance - 347,778,065 £1,104,445 99,004,443 507,886,953
Takaful / retakaful payable - 143,681,016 - - 143,681,016
Other crediiors and accruals 256,037,932 68,345,930 . 8,380 324,392,252
» Lease Liabilities 133,995,874 - - - 133,995,874
Taxation -provision less payments 76,782,801 - - - 76,782,801
572,835,670 57,766,291 091 365,998,235 691 ,664,744 £9,3986,789,739
. Total lizbilities 580,658,791 57,766,291,091 365,998,235 691,664,744 59,404,612,860
Total equity and liabilities 2,430,642,157 58,664,039,464 415,632,391 710,903,138 £2,221,117,150
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45.3 SEGMENTAL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Property and equipment
intangible assets
Right-of-use-Asset
investments

investment in Associate
Investment property

Advance against investment property

Takaful/ Re-iakaful receivahles

Deposits, loans and other receivables

Taxation - payments less provision
Prepayments
Cash and bank

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Unappropriated profit - net

Total equity

Deferred tax liability

Waqf / Participant Takaful Fund
{PTF}

Cede money

Accumulated surplus / (Deficit)
Total PTFs Equity

Qard-e-Hasna
Total Participants' equity

Takaful liabilities

Retirement benefits obligations
Contributions received in advance
Takaful / retakaful payable

Other creditors and accruals
Lease Liabilities

Taxation -provision less payments

Total liahilities

Total equity and liabilities

Decemeber 31, 2023

Participants' funds Aggregate
December 31,
Shareholders’ Individual Group Group 2023
Fund Family Family Health ’
(Rupees)

474,986,768 - - - 474,986,768
84,707,828 - - - 84,707,828
1,448,094,290 33,898,552,211 235,063,587 - 35,681,710,088
- 9,124,510,000 - - 1,124,510,000
3,775,000 128,624,000 - - 432,398,000
- 75,274,737 220,554,736 814,101,497 1,109,830,970
138,584,614 173,314,176 746,941 13,738,146 326,384,877
- B81,307,826 12,852,634 7,464,102 901,724,562
20,778,575 - - - 20,778,575
37,702,124 3,777,791,598 72,803,918 143,551,556 4,031,839,196
2,208,629,199 40,059,374,548 542,211 ,818 978,856,301 43,789,071 ,864
1,307,124,400 - - - 1,307,124,400
346,773,632 - - - 346,773,632
1,653,897,032 - - - 1,653,807,932
12,508,208 - - - 12,508,208
- - 500,000 - 500,000
- 846,335,060 85,905,286 {234,749,488) 697,580,858
- 846,335,060 86,485,286 (234,749,488) 98,080,858

- - - 260,000,000 260,000,000 _
- 846,335,060 86,495,286 25,250,512 958,080,858
- 38,732,622,131 340,347,930 | 600,644,332 48,673,614,393
84,767,974 - - - B4,767 974
- 280,713,142 | 109,388,803 352,386,672 751,488,717
- 111,732,756 5,313,697 - 117,046,453
259,668,284 78,071,459 666,000 574,785 339,880,528
184,547,201 - - - 184,547,201
13,239,600 , - - - 13,238,600
542,223,089 39,213,039,488 455,716,530 953,605,769 41,164,584,866
554,731,267 39,213,030,488 455,716,530 953,605,789 41,177,003,074
2.208,628,199 40,050,374,548 542,211 816 978,856,301 43.789,071,864
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46.1

. Fair value
Availabie-

for-sale through profit or Term deposits Total
loss
{Rupees)

MOVEMENT IN INVESTMENTS

As at January 01, 2023 1286,311,838  24,470,262,744 100,000,000  25,856,574,582
Additions 932,235,720  55,650,039,938 50,000,000 56,632,275,658
Disposal (sale and redemption) (917,039,900) (49,797,984,871)  (100,000,000) (50,815,024,771)
Fair value net losses 97,040,476  3,809,935,143 - 3,007,884,619
As at January 01, 2024 1,399,457,134  34,132,252,953 50,000,000 35,581,710,088

Additions 1,307,125,386  94,731,593,400 50,000,000 96,088,718,786

Disposal (sale and redemption) (1,362,903,363) {82,024,601,092)  (50,000,000) (83,437,504,455)
Fair value net losses 61,647,066  5459,666,815 - 5,521,313,881

As at December 31, 2024 1,405,326,223  52,298,912,076 50,000,000 53,754,238,300

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate Instruments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable change .in rates of profit, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company's profit before tax and equity based upon average balances and rates:

Increase / Effect on -
Effect on
decrease profit
in basis points before tax equity
: {Rupees)
December 31, 2024 100 42,826,510 30,406,822

(100} _ (42,826,510) (30,406,822)

December 31, 2023 100 7,573,342 5,377,073
(100} (7,673342) (5,377.073)

TAKAFUL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company issues contracts that transfer takaful risk or financial risk or both to the Company. This seclion summarises
these risks and the way the Company manages them.

Takaful risk
The PTF issues takaful contracts which are classifled in the following segments:

+ Individual Family (unit linked)
+ Group Family
« Group Health

- The Individual Family including (unit linked) segment provides family takaful coverage lo individuals under unit
based policies issued by the PTF. The takaful contracts under individual family are distributed through Direct Sales
Force and Bancatakaful.

- The Group Family segment provides Family takaful coverage to members of business enterprises and corporate
entities under group family takaful schemes issued by the PTF. The takaful contracts under group family are
distributed through Direct Sales Force and sales staff employed by the Company.

- The Group Health segment provides accident coverage and inpatient / outpatient health coverage to members of
business enterprises and corporate entities under group health schemes issued by the PTF. The takaful contracts
under group health are distributed through Direct Sales Force and sales staff employed by the Company.

The Company assesses the takaful risk on the basis of the different factors such as. non-medical factors, medical factors,
financial assessment, occupation assessment, group gize, industry class, average age of the group and free cover limit
etc.
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The basic risk the Company faces under takaful contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual claim paid and
subsequent development of claims. The most significant risks arise from catastrophic events and epidemic.

Underwriting & Re-takaful and claim committees are in place to monitor the core business activities of the Company.
This is further supplemented with a clear organisational structure with documented delegated authorities and
responsibilities. Management of the Company recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk

management systems. The facus is on issuing contract to people having moderate risk of mortality and morbidity and

having appropriate economic worth and source of income.

The PTF's risk exposure is mitigated by employing a comprehensive framewark to identify, assess, manage and
monitoring of risk. This framework includes implementation of underwriting strategies which aim o ensure the careful

selection of takafill contracts and the diversification in terms: of portfolio, type and
is arranged to mitigate the effect of the losses and retakaful arrangement for catas

amount of the risk. Adequate retakaful
trophic events. PTF exposure has also

been limited by imposing limits to the maximum sum covered in a single takaful contract In each class of business.

Further, in order to reduce the risk exposure of the PTF, the Company adopts proactive claim
strict claim review policies including active management and prompt pursuing of the claims,

claim handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible false ciaims.

The PTF's class wise risk exposure (for a single life policy) is as follows:

December 31, 2024

handling procedures and
regular detailed review of

Maximum Maximum Highest
Gross Risk Retakaful Net Risk
Exposure Cover Retention
: {Rupees)
Class
Individual family 300,000,000 . 297,000,000 3,000,000
Group family 200,000,000 198,000,000 2,000,000
Group health 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
502,500,000 495,000,000 7,500,000
December 31, 2023
Maximum Maximum Highest
Gross Risk Retakaful Net Risk
Exposure Cover Retention
(Rupees)
Class
Individual family 300,000,000 297,000,000 3,000,000
Group family 200,000,000 198,000,000 2,000,000
Group health 3,000,000 - 2,500,000
503,000,000 495,000,000 7,500,000

Categories of takaful contracts

(i) Long term takaful contracts.
(i) Short term takaful contracts

{iy Long term takaful contracis.

{a) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and contribution

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and contribution receipts for long-term contracts arises from
the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and the variability in contract holder behaviour.
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(b)

(i)
(@)

(b}

The Company uses appropriate base tables of standard mortality according to the type of conlract being written and
the teritory in which the insured person resides. An investigation into the actual experience of the Company over
the few years is carried out and statistical methods are used to adjust the crude mortality rates to produce a best
estimate of expected mortality for the future. Where data is sufficient to be stafistically credible, the statistics
generated by the data are used without reference to an industry table. Where this is not based on standard industry
{ables adjusted for the Company's overall experience, contracts that insure survival, an adjustment is made for
future mortality improvements based on trends identified in the data and in the continuous mortality reflected in this
experience. The Company maintains voluntary termination statistics to investigate the deviation of actual termination
experience against assumptions. Statistical methods are used to determine appropriate termination rates. An
allowance is then made for any trends in the data to arrive at a best estimate of future termination rates.

Process used to decide assumptions

Mortality and morbidity experience

Mortality / Morbidity tables are based on the risk rates being charged by the Re-takafui operators supporting
individual and group lines of business. These rates vary due to the age, sex, occupation and the nature of industry.

Persistency rates for long term individual policies
An investigation into the Company's experience from time to time determines an appropriate persistency rate.

Persistency rates vary by product type and policy duration. An allowance is then made for any trends in the data to
arrive at a best estimate of future persistency rates that takes into account the Participants’ behaviour.

Expense levels and inflation

All administrative and management expenses are charged to SHF, therefore, the inflationary risk is borne by the
SHF.

Investment returns

The participant account vaiues of these plans depend upon actual invesiment returns earned on these policies.
No investment guarantees are offered by the Company. Investment risk is borne by the paricipants.

Tax

There is no major impact of taxes on valuation of jiabilities, future benefit payments and contribution.

Change in assumptions

There has been no change in assumptions for the takaful contracts during the year,

Short term takaful contracts

Frequency and severity of claims

These contracts mostly pay a pre-determined amount on death and disability without any maturity or surrender
values. These contracts are issued to individuals: and also to employers to ensure their commitments to their
employees in terms of other employees' benefit plans.

The risk is affected by several factors e.g. age, occupation, benefit structure and life style. The Company attempts
to manage this risk through its underwriting, claims handling and retakaful policy.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future ¢laim payments

Other than for the testing of the adequacy of the llability representing the unexpired risk at the end of the reporting
period, there is no need lo estimate mortality rates for fulure year because these contracts have short duration.
However, for incurred disability income claims, it is necessary to estimate the rates of recovery from disability for
future years. Standard recovery tables produced by reinsurers are used as well as the actual experience of the
Company. The influence of economic circumstances on the actual recovery rate for individual contracts is the key
source of uncertainty for these estimates.
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{c) Process usedtc decide an assumptions
The assumptions used for these contracts are the same as for long term contracts.

Mortality

An appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. An investigation into
Company's experience is conducted from time to time. Where data is sufficient to be statistically credibie, the
statistics generated by the data are used without reference to an industry table.

Morbidity

The rate of recovery from disability is derived from industry experience studies, adjusted where appropriate for the
Company's Own experience.

{d) Changein assumptions
The Company did not change its assumptions during the year.
Sensitivities

The claims are sensitive to changes in the key assumptions. Results of sensitivity festing due to the variation in
assumptions of mortality and morbidity as determined by appointed actuary on PTF will be as follows:

Class of business Change in assumption Impact on PTF balance
Rupees

individual family 20 % increase in mortality level (351,376,604)

20 % decrease in mortality level 351,376,604
Group Health 20 % increase in morbidity level (75,807,192)

20% decrease in morbidity level 75,907,192
Group Family 20 % increase in mortality level {19,627,382)

20% decrease in mortality level 19,927,382

December:31, December 31,
2024 2023
Note —  -emerc——mmrommmeem] (RUpEES)--mmsrer—mwer=mmmms

Aging of outstanding claims

Upto one year 1,151,459,646 1,094,607,974
Qver one year 552,448,602 275,595,366
22 1,703,908,248 1,370,293,340

Movement of outstanding claim

Opening balance 1,370,293,340 1,007,225,1563
Total gross claims 35 17,773,459,111 10,054,415,360
Claims paid (17,439,844,203) {10,591 347,173)
Closing balance 1,703,908,248 1,370,293,340

Re-takaful risk

In order to minimise the financial exposure arising from claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into
agreement with other parties for retakaful purposes. Re-takaful ceded does not relieve the PTF from its obligation to takaful
contract holders and as a result the PTF remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims covered under retakaful to the
extent thal retakafui company fails to meet the obligation under the re-takaful agreements.

To minimise its exposure to significant losses from retakaful insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of
its retakaful companies. The Company has obtained re-takaful arrangements ~with prominent international re-takaful
operator having high credit rating. .
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46.4

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the.
Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the foliowing risks from its use of financial
jinstruments:

- Liquidity risk;
- Credit risk;
- Market risk;

Risk management framework

The Board meets frequently throughout ihe year for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.
The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Comipany, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations. '

The Audit Committee monitors management's compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures,
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company

~ Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit function. Internal Audit undertakes both regutar and adhoc

reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.

. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected

or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its

liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to

. the Company's reputation. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expecled operational

requirements. To guard against the risk, the Company maintains balance of cash and cash equivalent and readily
marketable securities. The maturity profile of assets and liabilities is also monitored to ensure that adequate liquidity is

" maintained. The following are contractual maturities. of financial liabilities:

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Carrying Contractual Carrying Conlractual cash
Amount cash flows Amount flows upto one
upto one year year

Non-derivative
financial liabilities {Rupees)
Quistanding claims 4,703,908,248 1,703,908,248 1,370,293,340 1,370,293,340
Takaful / re-fakaful payables 143,681,016 143,681,016 117,046,472 117,046,472
Agent commission 69,936,994 §9,936,994 64,025,334 64,025,334
Creditors, aceruals and other
liabilities 248,259,082 248,259,082 172,669,515 172,669,515

2,165,785,340 2,165,785,340 1,724,034,661 1,724,034,661
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48.7

46.7.1

46.7.2

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk, which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by menitaring
credit exposures with counterparties and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties and measuring

exposure with counterparties to remain at a reasonable level,

Exposure to credit risk

The Company structures the Jevels of credit risk it accepts by placing fimits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or

groups of counterparties, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are subject to an annu

frequent review,

al or more

Retakaful is used to manage takaful risk. This does nof, however, discharge the Company's liability as primary takaful
operator. If ‘a retakaful operator fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment fo the
participant. The creditworthiness of retakaful operators is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial

strength prior to finalisation of any contract.

Exposures to individual participants and groups of participants are collected within the ongoing monitorin

g of the controis

associated with regulatory solvency. Where there exists significant exposure to individua! participants, of homogenous
groups of participants, a financial analysis equivaient to that conducted for retakaful operators is carried out by the

Company risk department.

The credit quality of the Company's bank balances and term deposit receipts can be assessed with reference to external

credit ratings as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
{Rupees)

Rating

AAA 297,112,539 1,671,121,455

AA+ 38,237,296 38,765,086

AA 529,248,947 684,558,608

AA- 1,513,909,598 1,235,101,897

A+ 102,348,976 318,504,208

A 1,842,983,533 17,227,002

A- 18,210,839 59,732,078

BBB- 800,383 -
4,342,862,111 4,025,100,336

Term Deposit Receipts

AA 50,000,000 50,000,000

*Rating of Banks performed by PACRA and JCR-VIS.

The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposire, as specified below:

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
B et {Rupees)-=---um-vsur-nu=-
Cash and bank deposits 4,381,525,712 4,031,939,196
Deposits maturing within 3 months 50,000,000 50,000,000
Long term security deposits - -
Contributicn due but unpaid . -
Takaful / Retakaful receivables 842,186,279 1,108,830,97Q

Accrued investment income

. Advance against investment property - 132,399,000
L(a?ns and other receivables 241,954,433 326,384,877
Investment in unfisted equity securities 15,000,000 15,000,000

5,530,666,424 5,665,654,043
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46.7.3

46.7.4

Note
Financial assets
Secured
Unsecured
Not past due
Past due but not impaired 46.7.2.1

The age analysis of financial asset are as follows:

December 31, 2024

December 31,
2024

4,219,522,206
1,311,144,218

December 31,

2023

B {Rupees)--—-inmrmramzmmns

4,389,195,732
1,141,471,978

5,530,666,424 5,530,667,710
4,544,780,862 4,630,997,810

985,885,562 1,034,656,233
5,530,666,424 5,665,654,043

December 31, 2023

Carrying value Impairment Carrying value Impairment
: {Rupees)

Nof past due 4,544,780,862 - 4,630,997,810 -
Past due but not impaired

Upto 1 year 935,885,562 - 1,034,656,233 -

1-2 year - - - -

Qver 1 year - - - -

Total 5,530,666,424 - 5,665,654,043 -

These amounts are receivable from corporate customers having good credit standing in the market and are doing regular
business wilh the Company, therefore the management believes that these amounts will be fully recoverable.

The table below analyses the concentration of credit risk by industrial distribution in respect of:

Banks

Manufaciuring

Other Financial institutions
Pharmaceuticals

Services

Textile

Trading

Foreign Embassy

Amount due from retakaful operator in respect of retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
(%)

13 9
16 20

2
1
37 44
5
4
20 17
100 100

The Company enters into a retakaful arrangements with retakaful operator having sound credit ratings accorded by
reputed credit rating agencies. The Company is required to comply with the requirement of circular 32/2009 dated
October 27, 2009 issued by SECP which requires a takaful company to place atleast 80% of their outward treaty session

with retakaful rated *A’ or above by Standard and Poor's with the balance being pl
reputed credit agency. During the year, the Company placed 100% of their outwar

having rating of 'A’ or above.

aced with entities rated atleast 'BBB' by
d treaty cession with retakaful operator
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An analysis of all retakaful cession by the rating of the re-takaful entity is as follow:

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Credit rating agency RO (11 1-T- -
Rating
A or above Standard and poor 417,833,165 449 816,541
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result-of changes in market prices;
whether those. changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all

securilies traded in the market. The Company manages its exposure to such risks by maintaining a diversified paortfolio
comprising of sukuks, Islamic mutuat funds and listed securities.

A decline in markets or an increase in market volatility may also adversely affect sales of our unit linked products.
Company recognises that market risk is part of the businesses and certain level of market risk is acceptable in order to
deliver benefits to both participants’ and shareholders.

Foreign exchange risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency
rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions In foreign
currencies. As the Company had no material assets or liabilities in foreign currencies at the year end, the Company is not
materially exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities
traded in the market, The Company manages its exposure to such risks by maintaining a diversified portfolio comprising
of sukuk and Islamic mutual funds.

Capital management

Capital requirements applicable to the Company are set and regulated by the SECP. These requirements have been put
in place to ensure sufficient solvency margins. The Company manages its capital requirement by assessing its capital
struclure against the required capital level on a regular basis: Currently the Company has a paid up capital of Rs.
1,307.124 milfion against the minimum required paid-up capital of Rs. 700 million set by the SECP for insurance
companies / Takaful operators for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the process,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Gompany's operations either internally with in the Company or externally at
the Company's service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liguidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behaviour.
Operational risks arise from all of the Company's activities.

The Company's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its
reputation with achieving its objective of generating returns for stakehoiders.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the beard
of directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

- requirements for the recanciliation and monitering of transaciions;
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- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adetuacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified; :

- ethical and business standards;

risk mitigation, inciuding takaful where this is effective.

Management ensures that the Company's staff have adequate training and experience and fosters effective
communication related to operational risk management.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which the
changes have occurred. There are no such transfers during the year.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received upon selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair values of all the financial instruments are estimated to be not significantly different from their carrying values.
Fair value hierarchy

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements: '

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels of liabilities,

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are chservable for
the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on obsefvable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

{a) Financial instruments in level 1

Financial instruments included in level 1 comprise of investments in listed ordinary shares, Government and
other sukuks and units of mutual funds.

(b} Financial instruments in level 2
Currently; no financial instruments are classified in level 2,
(c) Financial instruments in level 3

Currently, no financial instruments are classified in level 3.
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50.2 A new format of financial statement has been prescribed where revenue account, statement of contribution, statement of
claims, statement of expenses and statement of invesiment income have been done away with. Statement of financial
position has been consolidated, previously presenting each class of business separately.

51. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

N

09 APR 2025

These financial statements were authorised for issue on by the Board of Directors of the Company.

SW %
Director Chairma

Chief Executive Officer

—

I
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FAMILY TAKAFUL

Tegether {for the Furure

NOTICE OF THE 19™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 19 Annual General Meeting of the:shareholders of Pak-Qatar Family

Takaful Limited {the Company) will be held on Wednesday, 30™ April 2025 at 1500 hours. at the

Head Office of Pak-Qatar Family Takaful Limited, Business Arcade, Block 6 P.E.C.H.S, Shahra-e- Faisal,
Karachi;

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

a.

2,

6.

Ta confirm the minutes of Annual Genéral Meeting of the Company held-on 2gt April 2024.

To receive, consider and .approve the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2024 together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

To consider and approve the Dividend of 10% i.e. Rs, 1 per share; as recommended by the Board
of Directors to sharehelders for the year ended Pecember 31, 2024.

. To-appoint External Auditors for the year ending 31 December 2025 and fix their remuneration.

The Audit:Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the name of M/s Yousuf
Adi! {Chartered Accountants) for re-appointnent as Statutory Auditors and Shariah Compliance
Auditofs..

To elect directors as fixed by the Board of directors in accordance with the provision of section
159 of the Cormpanies Act, 2017 for three years. The names of retiring directors are as follows:

IV, Sheikh Ali Bin Abdullah Al Thani Mr. Abdul Basit Ahmed Al-Shaibei
i Mr. Said Gul Mr. Ali lbrahirm Al Abdul Ghani

! Mr. Zahid Hussain Awan 1 MIr, Owais Ansari T

; Mr..M. Kamran Saleem h Mrs. Sarneera Usman

Mr. Farrukh Vigaruddin Junaidy o ' '

To transact any othér business as may be placed before the Meeting with the petmission of the
Chair.

Muhammad Kamran Saleem
Company Secretary

09 April 2025
Karachi
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Notes:

[

Thie Share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from 24-04-2025 to 30-04-2025 {bath
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at Company’s registered office at the close of business-on
23-0422025 will be treated in time for the purpose of attending the meeting.

Members-are fequested to notify/submit the following at registered office; if not earlier provided;
a} Changein their postal and/or email Addresses, if any.
b) Valid ‘& legible photocopy of .Computerized. Nation Identity Cards {CNIC)/Passport for
individuals and MNational Tax Number (NTN) for both Individuats & Corporate éntities.

For attending the meeting: in case -of individuals, the shareholder shail authenticate his/her original
valid Computerized National Identity Card {€NIC) or the original Passpart at the time of attending the
meeting. In casé of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / Power of ‘Attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall he prodiced {unless it has been provided earlier) at the
time.of meeting,

A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting shall be entitled to appoint
anbther member, as his/her proxy to attefid, speak and votée instead of him/her, and a. proxy so
appointed shall have such r’ig_h_ts_, -as respects attending, speaking and voting at the Meeting as are

-available to a member. A Member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy toattend any

one meeting. If-any Member appoints more than one proxy for any one meeting and more than one

instruments of proxy are deposited with the. Company, all such instruments. of proxy shall ‘be

rendered invalid. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

For appointment of proxies: Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received by / lodgéd with the
Company at its Registered Offics, Business Arcade, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi not
less. than 48 hours. before the Meeting. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resclution/
power of attorney with the-specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been
provided edrlier) at'the time of meeting. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or criginal
passport at the time of the Meeting. (Proxy form is annexed herewith).

SECP through its Notification SRO 287 {1}/2014 dated September 08, 2014-has allowed the cireulation
of Audited Financial Statements along with Notice to members of the Company through e-mail. The.
Company i$ pieased to offér this facility to our valued memibers who desite to receive annual
financial statements.and notices through email in future. In this regard, ali members of the Company
who wish-to opt this facility are requested to send their consent via email on a standard request
form. The Company shall, however, provide hard copy of the Audited Financial Statements to its
sharehalders, on request, free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such reguest..

Pursuant to’Section 223(7) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Coampany has placed the audited Annual
Financial Statements of the Company for the year erided December 31, 2024 along with the report
thereoh on its website.

As per the provision of Section 244 of the Companies Act 2017, any shares issued or. dividend
declared by the Ccm'pan‘_ywhic'h have remiained unclaimed for a period of three years from the date:
onwhich it was due and payable are required to be deposited with the Commission for the credit of
Federal Government after issuance of notice to: the shareholders to file their claim. Shareholders are
requested to ensure that their claims for unclaimed dividend and shares are lodged timely. In case,
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o claim' is fodged with the Company in the given time, the Company shall after publication a notice
i newspaper praceed to deposit the unclaimed/ unpaid amount and shares with the Federal
Government pursuant to the provision of Section 244{2} of the Companies Act 2017.

Demand a poll: Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements
of Sections 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clausés of the Companies (Postal
Ballot).Regulations, 2018.

We hereby apprise the shareholders that SECP vide Circular No.19/2014 dated October 24, 2014, has
directed companies to inform shareholders about changes made in the Section 150 of the Income
Tax.Ordinance. We hereby inform shareholders that Government of Pakistan through Finance Act has
made certain amendments in Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whereby the rates for
deduction of withho!ding tax on the amiount of dividend paid by the companies are @ 15% for filers
of income tax returns and @ 30% for non-filers of income tax returns, All members are advised to

_ensure their narmes are on Active Tax-payers list {ATL) provided on the website of Federal Board of

Revenue {FBR) otherwise tax on dividend will be deducted @30% instead of 15%.

In the case of shares registered in the name of two or more shareholders, each joint-holder is-to be
treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax be deducted by the Company on the basis of

shareholding of each joint-holder as may be notified to the Company in writing. In this regard, all

shareholders ‘who hold shares with joint shareholders, are requested to provide shareholding
proportions of Principal sharehaldér and Joint Holder(s) in respect. of shares held by them to the
Company at registered office, in writing as follow, before date of closing of share transfer book
-p’ositivéfy; otherwise it will be assumed that the shares'are equally held by principal shareholder and
joint holder{s) and divided, if any, declared by the.Company'wiII“be-accountéd for accordingly.

! ’ .Princ'iple sharehofder Joint Sharehoider

! Name !’ FolioNo. : TotalShares | MName &CNC Sh.ar_eft_qldmg Name B CNC Share.i.'!qldir?g.
: f : : Proportion {iMo. : : Proportion {Ng.
i i i Na. ) No. .

i of shares) of shares)

j

As per diréctives, the dividend warrants of the shareholders whose valid CNICs, are not available with

the Share 'Re_g"ist_rar could be withheld. All shareholders are, therefore, advised to submit a

photocopy of their valid CNICs immediately, if already not provided, at registered office of the

Company.

Under the Zakat and Usher Laws, Zakat is. deductible from the dividends at source and will be
deposited within the prescribed period with the relevant authority. For éxemption, shareholders will

be required to submit Zakat declarations under Zakat and Usher Ordinahc_e,_198_0j and Rule 4 of Zakat

{Deduction & Refund) Rules, 1981 C2-50 Form at registered office of the Company. The shareholders
while sending the Zakat Declarations must guote company name and their fespective Folio No.
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Proxy Form

The Company Secretary

Pak-Qatdr General Takaful Limited
Business Arcade, Block 6, P.E.C.R.S.,
Main Shahra—e-Féi'Sal, Karachi.

ifwe of

the member(s) of Pak-Qatar Gene_ra_l_ Takaful Limited and holder of

share register Folic No. ‘héreby appoint

; (full address) being

ordinary shares.as per

(full address) or- failing him/her

General Meetmg of the Company to be held on 30* April 2025 and at any adjourniment thereof.

‘Signature of
Mermber(s)

Signed this day of 20G25.
Witness 1: Witness 2;
Name & Signature- Name & Signature
Address : Address
CNIC / passport No. . CNICG / passport No.
Noté:

of
of

as my/our proxy to vote for me or us and on my/our behalf at the Annual

A member entitled to attend: and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitles to appoint another

mem_ber.as- proxy to attend, speak.and vate instead of him/her.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his-attorney
duly authorized in writing, if the appointer is a corporation, under its common seal or the hand of an

officer or attorney duly authorized. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company at its registered office not less than 48

‘hours before the meeting.
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